
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

October 4, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen's Episcopal Church 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns 
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of Friends of the Oak Harbor Library – accepted by Susan Norman,
President

b. Honors & Recognitions

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

October 4, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen's Episcopal Church 
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns 
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

i. Proclamation in Honor of Friends of the Oak Harbor Library – accepted by Susan Norman, 
President

b. Honors & Recognitionsb. Honors & Recognitions
i. Chief of Police Oath of Office

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
b. Approve Minutes of the September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting, September 27 Special Meeting

and September 28, 2016 Special Workshop Meeting
c. Request for Proposals Rejection-Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Chief of Police Oath of Office

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
b. Approve Minutes of the September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting, September 27 Special Meeting 

and September 28, 2016 Special Workshop Meeting
c. Request for Proposals Rejection-Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study

1



d. Reappointment: Community Police Advisory Board, Positions 2 & 9 

5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS
  a. Mayor
  b. Councilmembers

  c. City Administrator
i. Clean Water Facility Project Update 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - GMP No. 9 with Hoffman Construction for Electrical and Mechanical 

Services

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

d. Reappointment: Community Police Advisory Board, Positions 2 & 9 

5. MAYOR, COUNCIL & STAFF COMMENTS
  a. Mayor
  b. Councilmembers

  c. City Administrator
i. Clean Water Facility Project Update 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - GMP No. 9 with Hoffman Construction for Electrical and Mechanical 

Services

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Nonea. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

2



3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Chief of Police Oath of Office

FROM: Mayor Bob Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor will swear in newly appointed Chief of Police, Kevin Dresker.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2. b. i.
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Chief of Police Oath of Office

FROM: Mayor Bob Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor will swear in newly appointed Chief of Police, Kevin Dresker.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Chief of Police Oath of Office

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Chief of Police Oath of Office

4

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1475079963x_at.pdf


CHIEF OF POLICE  
OATH OF OFFICE 

 
 

 
I,   KEVIN L. DRESKER       , DO SOLEMNLY SWEAR THAT I AM A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES AND OF 

THE STATE OF WASHINGTON AND THAT I WILL SUPPORT THE CONSTITUTION AND THE LAWS OF THE 

UNITED STATES AND OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, AND THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR. I WILL, TO THE BEST OF MY JUDGMENT, SKILL, AND ABILITY, DILIGENTLY AND IMPARTIALLY, 

PERFORM THE DUTIES OF CHIEF OF POLICE FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON AS SUCH 

DUTIES ARE PRESCRIBED BY LAW. I FURTHER SWEAR THAT I SHALL DILIGENTLY AND FAITHFULLY CARRY 

OUT THE LAWFUL DIRECTIVES OF THE DULY CONSTITUTED AUTHORITIES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND THAT I SHALL ABIDE BY THE LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS, SO HELP ME GOD. 

 
              

KEVIN L. DRESKER 
 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS   4TH     DAY OF    OCTOBER   ,  2016 . 
 
 
              

 

PRINT:         
  NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF 
  WASHINGTON, RESIDING AT       
  COMMISSION EXPIRES:       

5



  

LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS 

 

 

AS A LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, MY FUNDAMENTAL DUTY IS TO SERVE MANKIND; TO SAFEGUARD LIVES 

AND PROPERTY; TO PROTECT THE INNOCENT AGAINST DECEPTION, THE WEAK AGAINST OPPRESSION OR INTIMIDATION, 

AND THE PEACEFUL AGAINST VIOLENCE OR DISORDER; AND TO REPRESENT THE CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS OF ALL MEN TO 

LIBERTY, EQUALITY AND JUSTICE. 

 

I WILL KEEP MY PRIVATE LIFE UNSULLIED AS AN EXAMPLE TO ALL; MAINTAIN COURAGEOUS CALM IN THE FACE OF 

DANGER, SCORN, OR RIDICULE; DEVELOP SELF-RESTRAINT; AND BE CONSTANTLY MINDFUL OF THE WELFARE OF OTHERS.  

HONEST IN THOUGHT AND DEED IN BOTH MY PERSONAL AND OFFICIAL LIFE, I WILL BE EXEMPLARY IN OBEYING THE LAWS 

OF THE LAND AND THE REGULATIONS OF MY DEPARTMENT.  WHATEVER I SEE OR HEAR OF A CONFIDENTIAL NATURE OR 

THAT IS CONFIDED TO ME IN MY OFFICIAL CAPACITY WILL BE KEPT EVER SECRET UNLESS REVELATION IS NECESSARY IN THE 

PERFORMANCE OF MY DUTY. 

 

I WILL NEVER ACT OFFICIOUSLY OR PERMIT PERSONAL FEELING, PREJUDICES, ANIMOSITIES OR FRIENDSHIPS TO 

INFLUENCE MY DECISIONS.  WITH NO COMPROMISE FOR CRIME AND WITH RELENTLESS PROSECUTION OF CRIMINALS, I 

WILL ENFORCE THE LAW COURTEOUSLY AND APPROPRIATELY WITHOUT FEAR OR FAVOR, MALICE OR ILL WILL, NEVER 

EMPLOYING UNNECESSARY FORCE OR VIOLENCE AND NEVER ACCEPTING GRATUITIES. 

 

 

I RECOGNIZE THE BADGE OF MY OFFICE AS A SYMBOL OF PUBLIC FAITH, AND I ACCEPT IT AS A PUBLIC TRUST, TO BE 

HELD SO LONG AS I AM TRUE TO THE ETHICS OF THE POLICE SERVICE.  I WILL CONSTANTLY STRIVE TO ACHIEVE THESE 

OBJECTIVES AND IDEALS, DEDICATING MYSELF BEFORE GOD TO MY CHOSEN PROFESSION . . . LAW ENFORCEMENT. 

6



(FOR THE MAYOR – FOR READING ALOUD…WITH “PAUSES”, IF HE WISHES  
   – TELL KEVIN TO HOLD UP HIS RIGHT HAND) 

 
I,  KEVIN L. DRESKER       , DO SOLEMNLY SWEAR  

THAT I AM A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED STATES AND OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON  

AND THAT I WILL SUPPORT THE CONSTITUTION AND THE LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES,  

AND THE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  

AND THAT I WILL, TO THE BEST OF MY JUDGMENT, SKILL AND ABILITY,  

TRULY AND FAITHFULLY, DILIGENTLY AND IMPARTIALLY,  

PERFORM THE DUTIES OF CHIEF OF POLICE 

FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON  

AS SUCH DUTIES ARE PRESCRIBED BY LAW AND ORDINANCE,  

AND I FURTHER SWEAR  

THAT I SHALL DILIGENTLY AND FAITHFULLY  

CARRY OUT THE LAWFUL DIRECTIVES OF THE DULY CONSTITUTED AUTHORITIES  

FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  

AND THAT I SHALL ABIDE BY  

CONDUCT RULES OF THE LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS, SO HELP ME GOD. 

7



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and
Check Numbers listed in the October 4, 2016 Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. a.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Approval of Payroll and 
Accounts Payable Vouchers

FROM: Doug Merriman, Finance Director 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers listed in the attachments and
Check Numbers listed in the October 4, 2016 Regular Agenda.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation thatregularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 167950 through 168112 in the amount of $2,006,538.44.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 39275 through 39440.

- EFT check numbers 840 through 844.

- Payroll check numbers 99137 through 99202.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation thatregularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 167950 through 168112 in the amount of $2,006,538.44.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 39275 through 39440.

- EFT check numbers 840 through 844.

- Payroll check numbers 99137 through 99202.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

8



FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. 10.04.16 Vouchers

FISCAL IMPACT
 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
 

ATTACHMENTS
1. 10.04.16 Vouchers

9

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1475165408x_at.pdf


09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167950 9/26/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091316 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  399.00

Total :  399.00

 167951 9/26/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 091316 SALES/USE TAX  60,258.16

Total :  60,258.16

 167952 9/28/2016 0008018  2% JOINT ADVISORY BOARD 092616 ADVERTISING  4,406.25

Total :  4,406.25

 167953 9/28/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 25965 REIMBURSEABLE EXPENSES  159.89

 65.75REIMBURSEABLE EXPENSES25970

Total :  225.64

 167954 9/28/2016 0000005  A-1 TOWING 58865 TOWING SERVICES  193.49

Total :  193.49

 167955 9/28/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20160115 SEP 2016 MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00

Total :  199.00

 167956 9/28/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 72246977 BATTERIES  78.22

Total :  78.22

 167957 9/28/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 26289 KEYS  21.74

 17.59KEYS26295

Total :  39.33

 167958 9/28/2016 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 3057 JACKETS  234.79

Total :  234.79

 167959 9/28/2016 0007320  ALLIED 100 727222 HEARTSTART W/HARD CASE  1,403.00

Total :  1,403.00

 167960 9/28/2016 0000033  ALPINE PRODUCTS, INC TM-162193 PAIL QUICK JOINT  176.04

Total :  176.04

 167961 9/28/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 4523 WEBSITE SERVICES  50.00

 462.50WEBSITE SERVICES4985

1Page:

10



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167961 9/28/2016 (Continued)0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS

 21.25WEBSITE SERVICES5424

 800.00WEBSITE SERVICES5536

Total :  1,333.75

 167962 9/28/2016 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 092016 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE092016A

Total :  600.00

 167963 9/28/2016 0003091  ANDRICOS, JOANN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00

Total :  15.00

 167964 9/28/2016 0000046  APPLIED INDUSTRIAL 7008748847 PEER CHAIN  814.42

Total :  814.42

 167965 9/28/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988718864 UNIFORM SERVICES  26.88

 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988718865

 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988718866

 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988718867

 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988718868

 50.68UNIFORM SERVICES1988718869

 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988718870

 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988723115

 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988723116

 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988729467

 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988729468

 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988729469

 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988729470

 25.50UNIFORM SERVICES1988729471

 50.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988729472

 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988729473

 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988733711

 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988733714

 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988733715

 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988740079

 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988740080

 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988740081

2Page:

11



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 167965 9/28/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK

 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988740082

 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988740083

 50.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988740084

 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988740085

 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988744361

 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988744362

 26.88UNIFORM SERVICES1988750717

 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988750718

 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988750719

 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988750720

 25.21UNIFORM SERVICES1988750721

 50.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988750722

 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988750723

 21.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988754977

 27.72UNIFORM SERVICES1988754980

 35.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988754981

 24.62UNIFORM SERVICES1988761429

 18.33UNIFORM SERVICES1988761430

 20.45UNIFORM SERVICES1988761431

 20.09UNIFORM SERVICES1988761432

 27.47UNIFORM SERVICES1988761433

 50.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988761434

 16.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988761435

Total :  1,185.80

 167966 9/28/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 170743 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 167967 9/28/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0967653-IN FUEL  9,922.35

 6,628.60FUEL0968359-IN

Total :  16,550.95

 167968 9/28/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0924201 AIRCARDS  76.36

Total :  76.36

 167969 9/28/2016 0007688  AUTOZONE 3385104174 MICRO MITT/WASHER/BRUSHES  79.43

3Page:

12



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  79.43 167969 9/28/2016 0007688 0007688  AUTOZONE

 167970 9/28/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1603258-IN TESTING  105.00

Total :  105.00

 167971 9/28/2016 0004100  BERGDOLL, RICHARD 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 167972 9/28/2016 0008371  BEST WESTERN COTTAGE GROVE INN 090116 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/NYDAM  99.71

Total :  99.71

 167973 9/28/2016 0008268  BLUE, MARY FRANCIS 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 167974 9/28/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82276676 INSTA-GLUCOSE  22.50

 144.86BANDAGES/STETHOSCOPES82277986

Total :  167.36

 167975 9/28/2016 0004642  BRAINARD, JENNIFER 12 MUNICIPAL COURT PRO TEM  707.76

Total :  707.76

 167976 9/28/2016 0001074  BRAUNSTEIN, BRIAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  179.00

Total :  179.00

 167977 9/28/2016 0007926  BROWN, MICHAEL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  151.00

Total :  151.00

 167978 9/28/2016 0006939  CANDLEWOOD SUITES 2965 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  4,272.00

Total :  4,272.00

 167979 9/28/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 1344934 SUPPLIES  267.94

Total :  267.94

 167980 9/28/2016 0000147  CAREER TRACK 20694172 REGISTRATION/CHAVEZ  119.00

 119.00REGISTRATION/SCHMAL20694176

 119.00REGISTRATION/MATTHEWS20694296

 119.00REGISTRATION/NICHOLS20694297

 119.00REGISTRATION/WEBSTER20694304

4Page:

13



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  595.00 167980 9/28/2016 0000147 0000147  CAREER TRACK

 167981 9/28/2016 0008235  CARLETTI ARCHITECTS, PS 9789 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR FIRE STATION  6,961.00

Total :  6,961.00

 167982 9/28/2016 0006215  CAROLLO 0151693 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL 506,955.14

Total :  506,955.14

 167983 9/28/2016 0001235  CARROT-TOP INDUSTRIES 31978600 FLAGS  372.55

Total :  372.55

 167984 9/28/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60

 29.91NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 85.72NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 52.83NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 13.05NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 127.04NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 18.71NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 132.38NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 19.95NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

 21.47NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  564.66

 167985 9/28/2016 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 28914 TOWING SERVICES  869.60

Total :  869.60

 167986 9/28/2016 0000177  CLEMENTS, MICHAEL G. TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  179.00

Total :  179.00

 167987 9/28/2016 0004520  COASTAL WEAR PRODUCTS 6359 GUTTER BROOM  578.87

Total :  578.87

 167988 9/28/2016 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 54358 MUNICIPAL CODE UPDATES  195.12

5Page:

14



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  195.12 167988 9/28/2016 0000188 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY

 167989 9/28/2016 0001433  COLE, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  31.00

 25.00TRAVEL REFUND1A

Total :  56.00

 167990 9/28/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 BUSINESS CABLE  119.43

 25.61XFINITY8498300270032028

 250.65INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  395.69

 167991 9/28/2016 0008390  CORBETT, JANET 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 167992 9/28/2016 0001434  CROWLEY, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 167993 9/28/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-21321 SENSOR  94.19

 740.63CLEANER001-21461

 56.47SEALS001-21526

Total :  891.29

 167994 9/28/2016 0008263  CURTIS BLUE LINE INV51427 BALL CAP  33.91

 38.90GOLD BARSINV52154

 554.37PLATESINV52726

Total :  627.18

 167995 9/28/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-795 NAME TAGS  94.57

Total :  94.57

 167996 9/28/2016 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3316804 COMP CLASS STUDY  339.30

Total :  339.30

 167997 9/28/2016 0000235  DAVIDO CONSULTING GROUP, INC 16845 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR SCENIC HEIGHTS DRAIN 246.00

Total :  246.00

 167998 9/28/2016 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 420712 RADIO MAINTENANCE  744.60

6Page:

15



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  744.60 167998 9/28/2016 0000256 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS

 167999 9/28/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-57 PORTABLES  60.00

 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-57

 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-38

 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-40

 60.00PORTABLES1-533127-6

 60.00PORTABLES1-533144-7

 60.00PORTABLES1-533144-9

 60.00PORTABLES1-534324-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534324-6

 180.00PORTABLES1-534325-4

 180.00PORTABLES1-534325-6

 180.00PORTABLES1-534325-7

 210.00PORTABLES1-534626-3

 270.00PORTABLES1-534627-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534629-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534629-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534630-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534630-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534631-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534631-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534632-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534632-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534633-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534633-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-534634-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-534634-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-535690

 60.00PORTABLES1-535690-3

 60.00PORTABLES1-535690-4

 60.00PORTABLES1-535690-5

 285.00PORTABLES1-538059

 61.50BLADE1-538525

 179.55CAN PUMPING1-539132

 200.00CAN PUMPING1-539488

 653.28SPINDLE1-543030

7Page:

16



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  3,899.33 167999 9/28/2016 0000247 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS

 168000 9/28/2016 0008392  DUCTVAC NORTHWEST, LLC 401785 AIR DUCT CLEANING  9,130.80

Total :  9,130.80

 168001 9/28/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 093016 SEP 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  321.71

Total :  321.71

 168002 9/28/2016 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 41963410 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  342.66

-727.49INVOICE ADJUSTMENT419868A

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421307

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421308

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421309

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421310

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421311

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421312

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421313

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421314

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421315

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421316

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421317

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421318

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421319

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421320

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421321

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421322

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421323

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE421325

Total :  7,324.21

 168003 9/28/2016 0008391  ESPINUEVA, DOLLIE OR EDDIE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  60.00

Total :  60.00

 168004 9/28/2016 0008082  EVIDENT, INC 108506C SWAPS  124.00

Total :  124.00

 168005 9/28/2016 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC 17808258-2 OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT  1,044.40

 417.76OFFICE SERVICES SUPPORT17844582-1

8Page:

17



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,462.16 168005 9/28/2016 0006276 0006276  EXPRESS SERVICES, INC

 168006 9/28/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK24672 FASTENERS  17.78

 38.65FASTENERSWAOAK24711

Total :  56.43

 168007 9/28/2016 0006618  FBI-LEEDA 80932 REGISTRATION/BAILEY  650.00

Total :  650.00

 168008 9/28/2016 0007963  FIDALGO AVENUE MERCHANT ASSOC 091816 ADVERTISING REIMB  6,000.00

Total :  6,000.00

 168009 9/28/2016 0000956  FINANCE OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1330595-84518844 MEMBERSHIP/STEVENS  50.00

 50.00MEMBERSHIP/WEBSTER1330595-84621196

 50.00MEMBERSHIP/DELA CRUZ1330595-95743394

Total :  150.00

 168010 9/28/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 093016 SEP 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 168011 9/28/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 85.18CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 120.53CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 71.64CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 65.86CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 66.28CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 75.09CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 40.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 33.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  817.21

 168012 9/28/2016 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 109508 TUBE AS  617.91

-76.45FRT ONLCM109508

Total :  541.46

 168013 9/28/2016 0000329  GALLS 006037600 PANTS  185.66

 309.45PANTS006039672

 309.26PANTS006044687

9Page:

18



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168013 9/28/2016 (Continued)0000329  GALLS

 309.49PANTS006060434

Total :  1,113.86

 168014 9/28/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9219712255 V-BELTS  506.48

 72.72V-BELT9222776800

 22.65PIPE PLUG9226237437

Total :  601.85

 168015 9/28/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 03239 MARKETING GRANT  1,350.00

 600.00MARKETING GRANT30238

Total :  1,950.00

 168016 9/28/2016 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8396 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 168017 9/28/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 177065/1 LD KIT  1,958.99

Total :  1,958.99

 168018 9/28/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4325950 RUBBER REPAIR KIT  55.98

Total :  55.98

 168019 9/28/2016 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 57606481 COMPUTERS  4,399.09

 6,189.38COMPUTERS57606890

 1,031.56COMPUTERS57606891

 1,031.56COMPUTER57606892

 451.97HP PROMO 4GB DDR457609889

 75.33HP PROMO 4GB DDR457609890

 75.33HP PROMO 4GB DDR457609891

Total :  13,254.22

 168020 9/28/2016 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  43.47

Total :  43.47

 168021 9/28/2016 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWFC16 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  1,020,816.74

Total :  1,020,816.74

 168022 9/28/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 164761 HOSE REEL  43.45

10Page:

19



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168022 9/28/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 86.87MULCH164773

 38.11GLOSS/PRIMER/PAINT BRUSHES27232

 6.82CEDAR3565621

 12.95CONCRETE MIX4010789

 163.43LOCK/STUDS/SHIMS/CABINET4020251

 52.47STRIP4132641

 31.79MOPS4564981

 7.59ELECTRICAL TAPE4582132

 19.33POPTOGGLE/PUTTY5564904

 18.67LUBRICANT/BUCKET564030

 28.34MYLAR REFLECTIVE7570193

Total :  509.82

 168023 9/28/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 811695 COFFEE SUPPLIES  47.11

Total :  47.11

 168024 9/28/2016 0008385  HOSTEK.COM 625560 COLDFUSION BUSINESS PRO  21.99

Total :  21.99

 168025 9/28/2016 0000396  I-COM GPS-16-02 GPS MR CLOCK ASSMT  2,432.90

 191.92GPS MR CLOCK ASSMTGPS-16-10

Total :  2,624.82

 168026 9/28/2016 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 1000711373 PUBLICATIONS  1,223.44

Total :  1,223.44

 168027 9/28/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114521227306 INMATE MEDS  53.89

Total :  53.89

 168028 9/28/2016 0000447  JAMESON, KEITH TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00

Total :  111.00

 168029 9/28/2016 0000794  JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 72369 KEY  20.14

Total :  20.14

 168030 9/28/2016 0002770  JOHN DEERE GOVERNMENT 115477187 ROTARY CUTTER  2,529.25

11Page:

20



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,529.25 168030 9/28/2016 0002770 0002770  JOHN DEERE GOVERNMENT

 168031 9/28/2016 0005033  KAY PARK-REC CORP 176496 BENCH  982.00

Total :  982.00

 168032 9/28/2016 0006362  KBA, INC 3002972 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY & OUTFALL 82,087.10

Total :  82,087.10

 168033 9/28/2016 0000476  KERR, JACK 09-16 PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 168034 9/28/2016 0003990  KUBALSKY, JOYCE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168035 9/28/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5104233MB ASPHALT  347.24

Total :  347.24

 168036 9/28/2016 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 11 INTERPRETER SERVICES  418.00

Total :  418.00

 168037 9/28/2016 0008194  LEE, BRIAN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  432.23

Total :  432.23

 168038 9/28/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400266105 TIRES  856.30

 61.14THRUST ANGLE ALIGNMENT41400266384

 1,111.90HIGHWAY SERVICE83400192134

Total :  2,029.34

 168039 9/28/2016 0007167  LEWIS, WAYNE 092616 SCULPTURE  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 168040 9/28/2016 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00067248 HOSE  566.53

Total :  566.53

 168041 9/28/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  129.00

Total :  129.00

 168042 9/28/2016 0001895  MACK, JOAN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

12Page:

21



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  30.00 168042 9/28/2016 0001895 0001895  MACK, JOAN

 168043 9/28/2016 0002729  MAILFINANCE N6119939 LEASE PAYMENT  610.53

Total :  610.53

 168044 9/28/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 121367 YARD WASTE  206.05

 238.95YARD WASTE121463

 151.80YARD WASTE121532

 205.00YARD WASTE121701

 91.25YARD WASTE121759

 108.40YARD WASTE121811

 150.75YARD WASTE121848

 178.75YARD WASTE122053

 90.90YARD WASTE122091

 116.80YARD WASTE122144

 143.05YARD WASTE122203

 100.35YARD WASTE122338

 169.05YARD WASTE122446

 94.05YARD WASTE122494

 125.55YARD WASTE122556

 180.85YARD WASTE122729

Total :  2,351.55

 168045 9/28/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 958978 GROCERIES  435.84

 304.24GROCERIES960318

Total :  740.08

 168046 9/28/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608510514 LONG DISTANCE  385.37

Total :  385.37

 168047 9/28/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  34.96

Total :  34.96

 168048 9/28/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  53.50

 234.36TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

 325.00TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB2

Total :  612.86

13Page:

22



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168049 9/28/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 091516 AUG 2016 HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,708.33

 1,708.33SEP 2016 HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES091516A

Total :  3,416.66

 168050 9/28/2016 0005266  MOFFATT & NICHOL ENGINEERS 721016 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR F DOCK BREAKWATER RE 3,258.75

Total :  3,258.75

 168051 9/28/2016 0005005  MUNNS, BETH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  210.42

Total :  210.42

 168052 9/28/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 274514 WIRE  10.86

 2.82BIT275390

 6.50TOGGLE275396

 3.48FASTENERS275417

 8.14CAULK275419

 11.13BULBS275442

 30.26TUBES/TEES/HOSE275453

 31.95FASTENERS275454

 5.41CHAIN275902

 9.79CABLE/ROPE275963

 29.47PAINTEBRUSHES275973

 71.68SPRAYPAINT/BATTERIES/BULBS276012

 6.51SPRAYPAINT FLOOR ORNG11OZ276045

 8.61COUPLE276053

 15.21DRAIN276092

 32.52PAIL/CLEANER/BOWL/KEY HOLDER276093

 6.51FLAPPER276132

 6.51TANK VENT276133

 79.32RECEPTACLE/BKR276181

 5.42BATTERY276239

 30.41HEADLIGHT/BATTERIES276261

 1.08CAP276270

 45.64FAUCET276336

 10.83PRIMER/CEMENT/CAP276366

 0.54CEMENT276368

 1.72RING BINDERS 2"276392

 80.84CHAIN LOOP/FILE276455

14Page:

23



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168052 9/28/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 6.29LINK276459

Total :  559.45

 168053 9/28/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-284814 MUD FLAP  27.81

 48.24FILTERS001-285261

 10.42AIR REGULATOR001-285312

 42.09FILTERS001-285317

 45.58SENSORS001-285383

-10.42AIR REGULATOR001-285398

 5.88WIPER BLADE001-285479

 21.62BEAM/CPSL001-285640

 7.21BEAM/CPSL001-285641

 30.98CLIP/HITCH BALL001-285998

 25.31OIL001-286208

 8.51FILTERS001-286214

 5.76RADIATOR001-286302

 4.29FILTERS001-286309

 22.25ANTI-FREEZE001-286455

Total :  295.53

 168054 9/28/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000160002 SEP 2016 COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00

Total :  11,092.00

 168055 9/28/2016 0006980  OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH DYNAMICS 48718 CALIBRATION  790.00

Total :  790.00

 168056 9/28/2016 0000666  OGDEN MURPHY WALLACE 090916 BUY IN FEE DEPOSIT  6,000.00

Total :  6,000.00

 168057 9/28/2016 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 3049 DELA CRUZ/DICKINSON  150.00

Total :  150.00

 168058 9/28/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0103048 TIRES  249.55

 71.61TIRES0103049

 245.75TIRES0103050

 180.11TIRES0103051

15Page:

24



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168058 9/28/2016 (Continued)0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC

 2,489.52TIRES0103264

Total :  3,236.54

 168059 9/28/2016 0005388  PCM HOLDINGS 091716 HYDRANT DEPOSIT REFUND  878.30

Total :  878.30

 168060 9/28/2016 0007610  PERKINS COIE, LLP 5531090 PROF SVC/CONSTRUCTION ADVICE  1,104.57

Total :  1,104.57

 168061 9/28/2016 0008339  POHTILLA, SKIP 092116 EXP REIMB  179.78

Total :  179.78

 168062 9/28/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00

Total :  111.00

 168063 9/28/2016 0003995  PRORIDER, INC 70112 BIKE HELMETS  199.08

Total :  199.08

 168064 9/28/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT  1,038.24

 10.25ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 1,719.91ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 16.66ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 13.27ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 90.64ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 35.78ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 23.75ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.86ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 85.52ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 102.48ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 183.49ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 14.87ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 171.71ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 29.57ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 64.79ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD LIGHT200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

16Page:

25



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168064 9/28/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 10.25ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 13.84ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR WKITCH200005461666

 3,873.87ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 10.16ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 83.26ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 15.82ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 39.64ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 99.25ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 16.46ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 39.12ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LGHTS200010530240

 143.27ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST PARK200010530802

 138.57ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 10.86ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 87.64ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 98.63ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 42.52ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 326.66ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 19.20ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 15.76ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 964.01ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 2,318.95ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 13.09ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 1,475.23ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 1,767.14ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 105.72ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 40.68ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 884.89ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 89.85ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 62.54ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 319.41ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 963.43ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH200017441482

 49.70ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

17Page:

26



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168064 9/28/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 71.98ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 182.05ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 11.20ELECTRICITY/2085 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,178.79ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 24.29ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 27.36ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 12.14ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 15.82ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITEST200020308330

 36.08ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 27.54ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 23.35ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 35.59ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 30.71ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 90.23ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 116.13ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 63.49ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB ROAD220002244337

 858.02ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 941.89ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 14.76ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 215.05ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 14.87ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 398.86ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003

 64.85ELECTRICITY/STREETS300000007421

 53.97ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

 64.10ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 122.15ELECTRICITY/STREETS300000010458

 81.84ELECTRICITY/STREETS300000010516

Total :  22,589.89

 168065 9/28/2016 0007706  PURSEL, SHARON 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168066 9/28/2016 0000753  RADIOSHACK 024677 USB 4-PORT HUB  43.46

Total :  43.46

 168067 9/28/2016 0003060  RED LION HOTEL YAKIMA CENTER 38777 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/RAMIREZ  504.85

18Page:

27



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  504.85 168067 9/28/2016 0003060 0003060  RED LION HOTEL YAKIMA CENTER

 168068 9/28/2016 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 093016 OCT 2016 PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,666.50

Total :  1,666.50

 168069 9/28/2016 0004816  ROODZANT, LONA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168070 9/28/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 805221 GROCERIES  33.70

Total :  33.70

 168071 9/28/2016 0008386  SAYABR CONTRACTORS, INC BL-006121 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  12.50

Total :  12.50

 168072 9/28/2016 0000791  SCHEER, KEVIN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00

Total :  111.00

 168073 9/28/2016 0000801  SEA WESTERN, INC 193953 KEY FIRE HOSE  1,960.95

Total :  1,960.95

 168074 9/28/2016 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST s6-1222456 ROTORS/KITS  220.30

Total :  220.30

 168075 9/28/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 61093 PROF SVC/EMPLOYMENT ADVISORY  110.00

Total :  110.00

 168076 9/28/2016 0000964  SHERIFFS & POLICE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OFDUES 2016-00658 ASSOCIATE DUES/GARDNER  75.00

Total :  75.00

 168077 9/28/2016 0007939  SHERRILL, ANITA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168078 9/28/2016 0003783  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO 6657-0 PAINT  625.91

 11.07MICROFIBER6811-3

 13.90CONTR PACK/BLUE PAIL6826-1

 26.40ORANGEPEEL/THINNER6833-7

-22.13THINNER/PAIL7833-3

 133.24PAINT9220-4

19Page:

28



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168078 9/28/2016 (Continued)0003783  SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO

-133.24PAINT9226-1

Total :  655.15

 168079 9/28/2016 0007234  SHOCKEY, TERRY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168080 9/28/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9412183410 SHREDDING  61.21

Total :  61.21

 168081 9/28/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 14501 PST WINTER MIX/T-ZONE  5,824.96

Total :  5,824.96

 168082 9/28/2016 0004537  SKAGIT ISLAND COUNTIES 6781 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/LEE  450.00

Total :  450.00

 168083 9/28/2016 0000876  SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 23607 HVAC PROJECT  1,353.89

Total :  1,353.89

 168084 9/28/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7709956 AUG 2016/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  69.89

 296.55CITY NOTICESWCW716841

 47.35CITY ORDINANCESWCW720780

 129.58CITY NOTICESWCW720793

 52.33CITY NOTICESWCW720808

 36.13CITY NOTICESWCW721021

Total :  631.83

 168085 9/28/2016 0006357  SPOKANE VALLEY FIRE DEPT 16P11 TORQUE ROD/CLIPS/COVERS/TIE ROD ENDS/ADH 1,858.91

Total :  1,858.91

 168086 9/28/2016 0008384  SPYGLASS GROUP, LLC 10949 CONTINGENCY CONSULTING FEE  11,819.46

Total :  11,819.46

 168087 9/28/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 092016 LIFE/POCFF  320.63

Total :  320.63

 168088 9/28/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3313226699 INK/TONER/HIGHLIGHTERS  436.60

 105.43HP 950XL HYBLK3313226702

20Page:

29



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168088 9/28/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 141.30PRINTER3314159824

 48.01CARD POUCHES/NOTES3314159825

 39.06BATTERIES/FAN3314159826

 103.25CHAIRMAT3314159827

 27.37EXTENSION CABLE3314598606

-18.09CREDIT3314598607

 312.36TONER3314598608

 112.81PAPER3314598609

Total :  1,308.10

 168089 9/28/2016 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L116307 2016 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2015  56,474.70

Total :  56,474.70

 168090 9/28/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1125969 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 55.44PEST EXTERMINATION1126516

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1126763

Total :  175.02

 168091 9/28/2016 0008388  SUSTAINABLE CONNECTIONS 11396 COMMUNITY ENERGY CHALLENGE ASSESSMENT FE 120.00

Total :  120.00

 168092 9/28/2016 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 7618-001 TELEMETRY SYSTEM UPGRADE  9,224.33

Total :  9,224.33

 168093 9/28/2016 0008154  TESCH, NICOLE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  133.63

Total :  133.63

 168094 9/28/2016 0000897  TMG SERVICES, INC 0039851-IN DIAPHRAGM/JOINT/CONN  370.95

Total :  370.95

 168095 9/28/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 118515 VAN-ACCESSIBLE  98.26

Total :  98.26

 168096 9/28/2016 0007705  TROUT, MARILYN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 168097 9/28/2016 0007779  UNIVERSAL LANGUAGE SERVICE, IN INV-160818-10097C INTERPRETER SERVICES CREDIT -18.20

21Page:

30



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 168097 9/28/2016 (Continued)0007779  UNIVERSAL LANGUAGE SERVICE, IN

 97.50INTERPRETER SERVICESINV-160901-10356

Total :  79.30

 168098 9/28/2016 0000927  US BANK 4364425 OAKWATREV16  348.49

 300.00OAKLTGO114364761

Total :  648.49

 168099 9/28/2016 0008167  US BANK AND HOFFMAN CONST 242213000 RETAINAGE-ACCOUNT 242213000  49,219.71

Total :  49,219.71

 168100 9/28/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9771671363 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,364.59

Total :  5,364.59

 168101 9/28/2016 0008393  VEST MAN 3965 VEST CARRIER  310.00

Total :  310.00

 168102 9/28/2016 0007940  VON GREY, PETER TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00

Total :  111.00

 168103 9/28/2016 0002557  WAGNER, CLIFF 1 TRAVEL REFUND  60.00

Total :  60.00

 168104 9/28/2016 0008387  WESTECH ENGINEERING, INC 60224 WEAR STRIPS  980.15

Total :  980.15

 168105 9/28/2016 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC E242217 COOLANT MODULE  75.43

 643.49AIR DRYERS892482

 612.63REGULATORT737946

Total :  1,331.55

 168106 9/28/2016 0005064  WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE 25195 QTR 3 NW MINI CHAIN  1,051.75

Total :  1,051.75

 168107 9/28/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 296745 DRAIN CO  11.51

Total :  11.51

 168108 9/28/2016 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 287759 GARMENTS  8.08

22Page:

31



09/28/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

 3:43:18PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  8.08 168108 9/28/2016 0001007 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS

 168109 9/28/2016 0001016  WHIDBEY NEWS TIMES WN0000222364 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL - 2 YEAR  75.00

Total :  75.00

 168110 9/28/2016 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 4801 WIFI SETUP  1,037.96

Total :  1,037.96

 168111 9/28/2016 0006151  WHIDBEY WEEKLY, LLC 5208 ADVERTISING  250.00

Total :  250.00

 168112 9/28/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 702000945 JUL 2016 COPIER RENTAL  3,944.75

Total :  3,944.75

Bank total :  2,006,538.44 163 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 2,006,538.44Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 163

23Page:

32



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Approve Minutes of the 
September 20, 2016 Regular 
Meeting, September 27 Special 
Meeting and September 28, 
2016 Special Workshop 
Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes from the September 20, 2016 Regular Session and the September 27 & 28, 2016 
Special Workshop meeting as presented.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. b.
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Approve Minutes of the 
September 20, 2016 Regular 
Meeting, September 27 Special 
Meeting and September 28, 
2016 Special Workshop 
Meeting

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes from the September 20, 2016 Regular Session and the September 27 & 28, 2016 
Special Workshop meeting as presented.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 09/20/16 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. 09/27/16 Special Meeting-CWF Minutes
3. 09/28/16 Special Workshop Minutes

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 09/20/16 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. 09/27/16 Special Meeting-CWF Minutes
3. 09/28/16 Special Workshop Minutes

33

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474584159x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1475088314x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1475171071x_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – September 20, 2016 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

September 20, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Beth Munns Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
 Interim Police Administrator Terry Gallagher  
 Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
  
  
  
  
 

INVOCATION/ PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

Josh Hubbard, Assistant Pastor at Life Church, provided the invocation and then Mayor Severns 
led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 
 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to excuse Mayor Pro Tem Paggao.  Motion seconded 
by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, seconded by  

   Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 

2. PRESENTATIONS 
Garry Oak Society Presentation- Laura Renniger, President  of the Garry Oak Society shared a 
PowerPoint presentation with the City Council about the history and beauty of the Garry Oak 
Trees in Oak Harbor.   
 

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mayor Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 8:15 p.m.  
 

34



Regular Meeting Minutes – September 20, 2016 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

Citizens Speaking 

 Bob Brown  

 Matt Plush/Brad Nelson 

 Jaimi Greeley 
 
After public comments were given, the comment period was closed at 8:23 p.m. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
a. Approve Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on September 6, 2016 

and Special Meeting held September 12, 2016  
b. Ordinance No. 1779:  Park Board Code Amendment concerning Ex Officio Mem-

bership and Board Duties 
c. NE 7th Avenue Improvement- Authorization to Submit Grant Application  
d. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers  
e. Resolution 16-08:  Sole Source – Roll Carts 
f. Resolution 16-10:  Sole Course – Camera Van Components 
g. Approve the Chief of Police Employment Contract for Kevin Dresker  
h. Authorize Interlocal Facility Use (Lease) Agreement with ICOM 

 
Adoption of Consent Agenda  
Mayor Severns:  If there are no objections, the Consent Agenda without item g, items 
will be adopted as presented.  There were no objections. 

 
g.  Approve the Chief of Police Employment Contract for Kevin Dresker  

 
Councilmember Wasinger requested to move Item 4g. for clarification regarding the ap-
proval of the Chief of Police Employment Contract for Kevin Dresker being contingent on 
a background check. 

 
Councilmember Wasinger moved to approve the Chief of Police Employment Contract for Kevin 
Dresker.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved. 
 
 
 

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
5.a  Mayor 
Mayor Severns complimented our neighbors Naval Air Station Whidbey Island with various ex-
amples of their partnership.   
 
5.b  Councilmembers 
Councilmember Munns, Councilmember Hizon, and Councilmember Servatius provided their 
respective comments and announcements. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 

35



Regular Meeting Minutes – September 20, 2016 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

5.c City Administrator 
 

5.c.i Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 

City Engineer Joe Stowell presented the Clean Water Facility Update.  
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS 
 

a. Ordinance No. 1781:  Amend OHMC 6.12.080 Sale of Alcohol in Parks 
 
Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director provided the staff report and noted the Parks Board rec-
ommends approval.  
 
Mayor Severns opened the Public Hearing at 6:48 p.m.   
 
Public Comment was given by: 

 Matt Plush  

 Jason Tritt  

 Christine Cribb  

 Brad Nelson  
 

Mayor Severns closed Public Comment at 6:52 p.m.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to adopt Ordinance 1781 amending the Oak Harbor 
Municipal Code 6.12.080 to add Flintstone Park to the list of parks that may allow the sale of 
alcohol in parks during approved special community events, as well as allow the sale of alcohol 
in other City parks on a case by case basis under certain conditions.  The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Almberg, unanimously approved. 
 
 

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
None. 

 
8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 

None 
 

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
None. 

 
10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:58 p.m. 
 

        Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

36



 

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – September 27, 2016 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  

Special Meeting Minutes 

September 27, 2016 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Councilmember Joel Servatius 
Councilmember Tara Hizon 
Councilmember Jim Campbell 
Councilmember Rick Almberg 

City Administrator Doug Merriman  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Finance Director Patricia Soule 

Councilmember Beth Munns  
Councilmember Erica Wasinger 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
City Engineer Joe Stowell 

 Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
 Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
  
  
  
  
Mayor Bob Severns and Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao were excused. 
 

 
a. Clean Water Facility Project Update  

Joe Stowell, Engineer and Brett Arvidson, Project Engineer shared a PowerPoint presentation 
with City Council and reviewed the following:  

 
1. Project Review 
2. Total Project Cost  
3. Funding Strategy 
4. Rate Review 

 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 4:14 p.m. 
 
           Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

37



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – September 27, 2016 
Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  

Special Workshop Meeting Minutes 

September 28, 2016 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Severns called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Councilmember Joel Servatius 
Councilmember Tara Hizon 
Councilmember Jim Campbell 
Councilmember Rick Almberg 

City Administrator Doug Merriman  
City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Finance Director Patricia Soule 

Councilmember Beth Munns  
Councilmember Erica Wasinger 

Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
City Engineer Joe Stowell 

 Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
 Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
 Civil Engineer Brad Gluth 

Hank Nydam,  
Fire Chief Ray Merrill  
Interim Police Chief Terry Gallagher  

  
  
  
Mayor Bob Severns and Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao were absent. 
 
Emma House, Human Resources Director introduced the Council to the following new employees:  
Jessica Dela Cruz, Accountant; Dennis Dickenson, Solid Waste Collector; and Lisa Felix, Develop-
ment Services Administrative Assistant.    
 
Actionable Items 
 

1. Contract Award for 2017 Whidbey Island Marathon Race Director with Orswell Events, 
LLC. 

 
Doug Merriman, City Administrator presented the Contract Award for the 2017 Whidbey Island 
Marathon Director Orswell Events, LLC. and recommended approval.   

 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Contract Award for the 2017 Whidbey Is-
land Marathon Race Director with Orswell Events, LLC.  The motion was seconded by Councilmem-
ber Munns, unanimously approved. 
 
Councilmember Hizon was excused and left the meeting at 3:26 p.m. 
 
 
 

38



Special Workshop Meeting Minutes – September 27, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

Departmental Briefings 

2. Budget Presentation- Police Department

Terry Gallagher, Interim Police Chief presented the 2017-2018 proposed budgets for the Oak 
harbor Police Department.   

3. Budget Presentation- Fire Department

Ray Merrill, Fire Chief presented the 2017-2018 proposed budgets for the Oak Harbor Fire 
Department.   

4. Budget Presentation- Parks Department

Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Hank Nydam, Parks Operations Manager presented 
the 2017-2018 proposed budgets for the Oak Harbor Public Works Parks Department.   

ADJOURN 

The meeting adjourned at 5:01 p.m. 

Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

39



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Request for Proposals Rejection-
Comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study

FROM: Emma House, Human Resource Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to reject all proposals received on September 19, 2016 for a comprehensive Classification and Compensation
Study for all non-represented employees.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 17, 2016, request for proposals were advertised for a comprehensive Classification and Compensation
Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News Times for three 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. c.
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Request for Proposals Rejection-
Comprehensive Classification and 
Compensation Study

Emma House, Human Resource Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to reject all proposals received on September 19, 2016 for a comprehensive Classification and Compensation
Study for all non-represented employees.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On August 17, 2016, request for proposals were advertised for a comprehensive Classification and Compensation 
Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News Times for three Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News Times for three 
consecutive weeks.

This study would include approximately 81 positions and would include salary and fringe benefit levels, a review and if
necessary, an update of job descriptions, and a review of and recommendations on its performance management
system.

The City has not conducted a review in approximately twelve (12) years.  The job descriptions for current non
represented employees have been updated by City staff, but job descriptions may not reflect current job duties.  This 
project will be a comprehensive study of positions, classifications, and compensation.

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four proposals on September 19, 2016. 

Comments

Study for all non-represented employees in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News Times for three 
consecutive weeks.

This study would include approximately 81 positions and would include salary and fringe benefit levels, a review and if
necessary, an update of job descriptions, and a review of and recommendations on its performance management 

The City has not conducted a review in approximately twelve (12) years.  The job descriptions for current non-
represented employees have been updated by City staff, but job descriptions may not reflect current job duties.  This 
project will be a comprehensive study of positions, classifications, and compensation.

RFP Results: Staff received and opened four proposals on September 19, 2016. 

92672

40



Due to incomplete and estimate proposals, staff would like to reject all proposals and re-advertise to allow for current
vendors to resubmit complete and final proposals. 

Vendor RFP 
Coversheet

Signed Contact Information Comments

McGrath Human Resources Group P.O. 
Box 190 WonderLake, IL 60097 

X No Phone- 815.728.9111 Incomplete

Ewing Consulting 501 NE El Camino 
Real, Suite 210 San Clemente, CA 
92672

X Yes Phone- 949.366.4160 Estimate not
final proposal

Public Sector Personnel Consultants 1215 
W. Rio Salado #109 Tempe, AZ 85281 

X Yes Phone- 888.522.7772 Complete

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. P.O. Box 
32985Phoenix, AZ 85064-2985

X No Phone- 602.840.1070 Incomplete

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         N/A

Appropriation Source:            N/A

Due to incomplete and estimate proposals, staff would like to reject all proposals and re-advertise to allow for current
vendors to resubmit complete and final proposals. 

Vendor RFP 
Coversheet

Signed Contact Information Comments

McGrath Human Resources Group P.O. 
Box 190 WonderLake, IL 60097 

X No Phone- 815.728.9111 Incomplete

Ewing Consulting 501 NE El Camino 
Real, Suite 210 San Clemente, CA 
92672

X Yes Phone- 949.366.4160 Estimate not 
final proposal

Public Sector Personnel Consultants 1215 
W. Rio Salado #109 Tempe, AZ 85281 

X Yes Phone- 888.522.7772 Complete

Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. P.O. Box 
32985Phoenix, AZ 85064-2985

X No Phone- 602.840.1070 Incomplete

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         N/A

Appropriation Source:            N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

41



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Community 
Police Advisory Board, Positions 
2 & 9 

FROM: Mayor Bob Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Gene Barner to Business Position #9 on the Community Advisory Board.  

Appoint Bob Olsen to Resident Position #2 on the Community Advisory Board.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Community Advisory Board, as directed by Chapter 2.50.020 of the OHMC, states the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 4. d. 
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Community 
Police Advisory Board, Positions 
2 & 9 

FROM: Mayor Bob Severns

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Appoint Gene Barner to Business Position #9 on the Community Advisory Board.  

Appoint Bob Olsen to Resident Position #2 on the Community Advisory Board.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Community Advisory Board, as directed by Chapter 2.50.020 of the OHMC, states the The Community Advisory Board, as directed by Chapter 2.50.020 of the OHMC, states the 
composition of the Board shall consist of at lest two local business representatives and no less than five 
City residents.

Currently Gene Barner holds Resident Position #2 and works at the local Edward Jones office. Mr. 
Barner will resign Resident Position #2 and be appointed to Business Position #9

Currently Bob Olson holds Position #9 Business Owner/Manager (Whidbey Wild Bird) and lives inside 
city limits. Mr. Barner recently moved outside of city limits therefore to maintain the required composition
of the board, Bob Olsen will be appointed to Resident Position #2 and Gene Barner will be appointed to 
Business Position #9. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.020

FISCAL IMPACT
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

The Community Advisory Board, as directed by Chapter 2.50.020 of the OHMC, states the 
composition of the Board shall consist of at lest two local business representatives and no less than five 
City residents.

Currently Gene Barner holds Resident Position #2 and works at the local Edward Jones office. Mr. 
Barner will resign Resident Position #2 and be appointed to Business Position #9

Currently Bob Olson holds Position #9 Business Owner/Manager (Whidbey Wild Bird) and lives inside 
city limits. Mr. Barner recently moved outside of city limits therefore to maintain the required composition 
of the board, Bob Olsen will be appointed to Resident Position #2 and Gene Barner will be appointed to 
Business Position #9. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.020

FISCAL IMPACT
None

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

42



ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS

43



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5. c. i.
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Project 
Update 

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Update attached

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
City Council.City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Clean Water Facility Update

City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Clean Water Facility Update

44

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474932423x_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 4, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – October 4, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• Deep Foundation Concrete 
• Poured first foundation concrete on June 22 
• 27 of 63 concrete pours completed 

• Design 
• The Process Building 100% documents have been completed. 
• The non-process facilities 100% documents were completed 

• Process Structures 
• Received bids for mechanical and electrical work 
• GMP #9 was prepared for the October 4, 2016 Council Meeting review 

•  A project status report was presented at a special  Council Workshop on September 27 
 

 
ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 

• Advertise for bid the non-process structures. 
• Windjammer Park Integration Plan 

• Begin implementation activities 
• Self Perform Concrete (Buildings 20 and 30) 

• Continue concrete installation 
• Process Structures Mechanical/Electrical 

• Initiate GMP #9 upon Council approval 
 
 
 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers has completed the design drawings for 
the process structures associated with the treatment plant. 

100% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is complete. 100% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance facilities are complete. 100% 

 
  

45



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 4, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Building permits 
 
 

• The Deep Foundation GMP permit has been issued 
• A building permit for the process facilities has been issued 
• A permit application for the non-process facilities has been applied 

for. 
 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Sheet piles and tie-backs have been installed.  
Deep excavation has been completed.  A few 
miscellaneous tasks remain. 

July 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Micropile installation mostly completed.  
Miscellaneous closeout tasks underway. 

July 2016 

GMP #7 (Deep Foundation 
Concrete) 

Started installation of rebar and placement of 
concrete. 

May  2017 

GMP #8 (Building 20 and 30 
Concrete) 

Started installation of rebar and placement of 
concrete. 

October  2017 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 - Includes Membrane 
Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection equipment procurement 
and design support.  Does not include installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 - Construction of a new 
outfall from approximately the waterfront trail out into Oak 
Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15 - Preliminary site excavation 
and archaeological investigation.  Preliminary results indicate 
this work will come in under budget or be delayed until Site 
Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Site Preparation 
Package B will include utility relocates, minor demolition at the 
existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, sheet pile 
installation and deep excavation. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council on 10/20/15 - Resolution and GMP 
#5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved   

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

46



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 4, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #7 (Deep 
Foundation) 

$10,169,937 
(includes sales tax) 

The Deep Foundation package includes the concrete 
construction to bring the Membrane building to grade and 
other construction activities. 

GMP #8 (Self 
Performed Concrete) 

$11,766,510 
(includes sales tax) 

Contract awarded by Council on 9/4/16.  The self-performed 
concrete work will complete the subsurface membrane and 
aeration structures.  

GMP #9 (Mechanical 
Electrical packages) 

TBD Bids were received and a GMP prepared for review at the 
October 4 Council Meeting. 

GMP #10 (Non-
Process Structures) 

TBD Design is currently at approximately 90% 

GMP #11 (Site 
Restoration/Mitigation) 

TBD Windjammer Park Integration Plan Phase 1 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On June 21, 2016 we received a formal offer from the Department of Ecology for 
a $44,766,854 State Revolving Fund Loan at a rate of 1.6% for a term of 20 
years.  We will be working with DOE to amend our existing funding agreement 
over the coming months. 

Rates Ordinance 1760 was passed by City Council on March 15, 2016.  Staff will 
continue to evaluate rates as the project progresses. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant has also been 
obtained.  

2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant  

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  The city received the grant reimbursement. 

Bond Anticipation Note  This note has been repaid with proceeds from the bond sale. 

Bonds The City released bonds and secured a rate of 3.43%.  The city closed on the 
bond sale 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones.  A project mailer was distributed 
in August. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

Staff is working to implement the plan approved by City Council on June 7th. 

47



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 4, 2016 
4 

 

 
  

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 
 
Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org  
 
 

 
  

48

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  October 4, 2016 
5 

 

 

We are here  

49



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - GMP No. 
9 with Hoffman Construction for 
Electrical and Mechanical 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #9) in the amount of 
$33,265,589 + Sales Tax ($2,894,106) with Hoffman Construction for Electrical, Instrumentation, and 
Controls, Process Mechanical, and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8 .a.
Date: October 4, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - GMP No. 
9 with Hoffman Construction for 
Electrical and Mechanical 
Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator
Patricia Soule, Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #9) in the amount of 
$33,265,589 + Sales Tax ($2,894,106) with Hoffman Construction for Electrical, Instrumentation, and 
Controls, Process Mechanical, and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
installing the mechanical systems; and the electrical, instrumentation, and control components of the 
project.  This work involves installing the numerous mechanical and electrical systems that constitute a 
wastewater treatment plant.   

The work was divided into two bidding packages and advertised for bid.  Bids were opened on 
September 21, 2016.  A summary of the results of each package is shown below:

Bid Package #4a - Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls

Bidder Amount

Valley Electric $10,954,500.00

E&C Company $12,570,320.00

Elcon Electric $13,901,690.00

Package Estimate $15,525,295.00

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process.  The next phase of construction involves 
installing the mechanical systems; and the electrical, instrumentation, and control components of the 
project.  This work involves installing the numerous mechanical and electrical systems that constitute a 
wastewater treatment plant.   

The work was divided into two bidding packages and advertised for bid.  Bids were opened on 
September 21, 2016.  A summary of the results of each package is shown below:

Bid Package #4a - Electrical, Instrumentation and Controls

Bidder Amount

Valley Electric $10,954,500.00

E&C Company $12,570,320.00

Elcon Electric $13,901,690.00

Package Estimate $15,525,295.00

50



Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Valley Electric in the amount
of $10,954,500.00. 

Bid Package #4b – Mechanical Systems

Bidder Amount

University Mechanical $18,794,212.00

Hawk Mechanical $19,464,113.00

Prospect Mechanical $19,539,000.00

Package Estimate $25,015,165.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, University Mechanical, in the 
amount of $18,794,212.00. 

In addition to the two bid packages above, GMP #9 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 An allowance for demolition of the remaining RBC plant.
 Support services from Hoffman Construction through the end of the year.

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Valley Electric in the amount 
of $10,954,500.00. 

Bid Package #4b – Mechanical Systems

Bidder Amount

University Mechanical $18,794,212.00

Hawk Mechanical $19,464,113.00

Prospect Mechanical $19,539,000.00

Package Estimate $25,015,165.00

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, University Mechanical, in the 
amount of $18,794,212.00. 

In addition to the two bid packages above, GMP #9 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:

 An allowance for demolition of the remaining RBC plant.
 Support services from Hoffman Construction through the end of the year.

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment (GMP #9) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #9 is $33,265,589 plus $2,894,106 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  
At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but 
those amounts are included in the contract.

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Process Building construction
 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Amendment (GMP #9) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingencies, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  The complete cost anticipated by this 
GMP #9 is $33,265,589 plus $2,894,106 in sales tax.  These amounts are summarized in Attachment B.  
At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax amounts but 
those amounts are included in the contract.

Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:

 Process Building construction
 Non-Process Building Construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

LEGAL AUTHORITY

51



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:    $33,265,589 + Sales Tax ($2,894,106)           

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 
select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

July 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman                  
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

December 2, 2014 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:    $33,265,589 + Sales Tax ($2,894,106)           

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 3, 2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the 
delivery method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

December 17, 2013 - City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to 
select a General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant 
project.

February 18, 2014 –   City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

July 1, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman
            Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) project. 

December 2, 2014 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 
amount of $2,337,687.

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount
of $908,872.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount
of $2,028,222.

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

April 7, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

September 6, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #8 in the amount of $10,824,756 + Sales Tax 
($941,754) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Buildings 20 and 30, and 
Miscellaneous Changes.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

April 21, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the 
amount of $2,337,687.

June 16, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount 
of $908,872.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the 
amount of $5,109,549.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount 
of $2,028,222.

January 19, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of $3,966,503.

April 7, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #7 for procurement of the Deep Foundation Concrete in 
the amount of $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869).

September 6, 2016 – City Council authorized GMP #8 in the amount of $10,824,756 + Sales Tax 
($941,754) with Hoffman Construction for Self-Perform Concrete Work for Buildings 20 and 30, and 
Miscellaneous Changes.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

52



CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

November 13, 2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

November 19, 2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

February 26, 2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

June 25, 2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

November 19, 2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed.

April 7, 2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate.

May 17, 2015 – Council review of site selection process.

May 27, 2015 – Council review of GMP #3.

September 30, 2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options.

March 23, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

August 24, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #8.

September 27, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #9 and overall project status

ATTACHMENTS

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

November 13, 2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

November 19, 2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

February 26, 2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

June 25, 2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

November 19, 2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed.

April 7, 2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate.

May 17, 2015 – Council review of site selection process.

May 27, 2015 – Council review of GMP #3.

September 30, 2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options.

March 23, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

August 24, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #8.

September 27, 2016 – Council presentation of GMP #9 and overall project status

ATTACHMENTSATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - GMP #9
2. Attachment B - Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4a
4. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4b
5. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
6. Attachment E - GMP #1
7. Attachment F - GMP #2
8. Attachment G - GMP #3
9. Attachment H - GMP #4
10. Attachment I - GMP #5
11. Attachment J - GMP #6
12. Attachment K - GMP #7
13. Attachment L - GMP #8

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - GMP #9
2. Attachment B - Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4a
4. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4b
5. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
6. Attachment E - GMP #1
7. Attachment F - GMP #2
8. Attachment G - GMP #3
9. Attachment H - GMP #4
10. Attachment I - GMP #5
11. Attachment J - GMP #6
12. Attachment K - GMP #7
13. Attachment L - GMP #8

53

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474932109x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1475095705x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931411x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931457x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931526x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931566x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931588x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931628x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931656x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931689x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931717x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931746x_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=&aName=1474931776x_at.pdf


54



55



56



57



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
22-Sep-16

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev 0

GMP Amendment No. 9 Recapitulation

Electrical, Instrumentation & Controls; Process Mechanical

Direct Cost of Work

 Process Building Electrical Work (incl bond) Valley 8,416,600$                    

Instrumentation and Controls (incl bond) Valley 2,052,900$                    

Allowance - Admin / Maint Buidling Electrical; Security HCC 585,000$                        

Process Mechanical Work and Prepurch. Equip Install UMC 18,794,212$                  

Allowance - Remaining Existing RBC Plant Demolition HCC 300,000$                        

Total Direct Costs 30,148,712$                  

Negotiated Support Services

Negotiated Support Services HCC 88,500$                          

Total NSS 88,500$                          

Total NSS and Direct Costs 30,237,212$                  

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 1,058,302$                    

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 604,744$                        

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies 31,900,258$                  

Specified General Conditions -$                                

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Conditions 31,900,258$                  

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 1,365,331$                    

Total GMP Cost  - This Amendment 33,265,589$                  

Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 2,894,106$                    

Total Amendment No 8 (Incl. Sales Tax) 36,159,695$               

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST)

Preconstruction Services 790,050$                        

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$                    

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 1,991,249$                    

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 836,130$                        

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 5,109,549$                    

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 2,028,222$                    

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 3,966,503$                    

GMP Amendment No. 7 -- Area 30 Deep Concrete & Misc 9,355,968$                    

GMP Amendment No. 8 -- Phase 2 Self Perform Conc. 10,824,756$                  

Contract Subtotal Through Amendment 8 37,455,744$                  

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 70,721,333$               

58



City of Oak Harbor Washington

Clean Water Facility Project

Hoffman Project Number 5100014

GMP Amendment No 8 - Area 20 and Remaining Area 30 Concrete Work  

Period from May 31, 2017 to November 30, 2017

Negotiated Support Services Scope

28 Week Duration 

Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance   (.01 TCC) Incl w-amend 7

NSS 007001 Office manager (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007001 QA/QC Lead ( 12 mos ) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007001 Job services   / field supt - E Spicer  (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce  -- BIM modeling   (8  hours per week x 18 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007001 Todd Schultz - Safety Manager  (1 day per week 19 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007001 Asset Managment Program Support  (1000 mh @ $75/hour) 75,000.00$                 

NSS 007012 Temp housing (28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007012 HSI Supervision Relocation (If required) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints  (7mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007026 Construction Document Hyperlinking 8,500.00$                   

TC 007065 Tower crane outbound freight Morrow Incl w/amend 8

TC 007067 Tower crane dismantle  (portion not included in amendment 6) NWTC Incl w/amend 8

TC 007067 Tower crane dismantle assist crane (portion not included in amendment 6) Ness Incl w/amend 8

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party Incl w-amend 6

TC 007069 Hoisting rigging supply and maintenance (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (6/1/17 - 1/15/18) Garner Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015750 Rigger / Bellman for tower crane (6/1/17 - 1/15/18) Garner Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015750 Forklift Operator full time  (9/1/16-9/30/17)  56 weeks, 5% Casual  OT HSI Incl w/amend 8 2240 MH

NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007069 Small Tools (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party  (28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup w-spec GC

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension - 4 units (28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

Added radios for 

operators and 

bellman

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 28 weeks rental Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters  for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007081 Tower Crane Property Tax  ($800/mo) Morrow Incl w/amend 8

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month  for 7 mos)

Answering 

Innovations Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015940 Comcast Business Internet Service (24 months) Comcast 5,000.00$                   

NSS 010500

Ming Survey  $95/hr st and $117/hr ot 

(1680 hrs ST and 112  hrs OT) Ming Incl w/amend 8

3/4 time 2 man crew, 

2 hours OT / week 

100% of period

NSS 015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (212lf)  7 months Yard Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015300 Fence Rental Extension  (7 months) United Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015300 Temporary Fencing at Outfall Connection (3 months) United Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015180 Temp Water Service (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015180 Dewatering System Maintenance (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015220 Temp Road Maint Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015280 First Aid Station Maintenance & Supply ( 7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015280 Safety Rails , Ladders and Maint ( HSI Support) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015100 Temporary Electric -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 7 months Incl w/amend 8

59



Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each , 28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (28 wks) PCI Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015200 Pedestrian Protection Canopy at WIB North Side (60 wks) PCI Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 28 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015282 Drug Tests  (130 ea) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015800 Signage  (7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply  (7 months) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 7 mos) Incl w/amend 8

NSS 017990 Job Services (28 weeks, one individual) HSI Incl w/amend 8

NSS 017990 Job Services - Second individual (68 weeks) Incl w/amend 8

88,500.00$              

60



Period from May 31, 2017 to November 30, 2017

Specified General Conditions & Specified Staffing

Weeks Weekly Rate Total

Trevor Thies 22 3,270$                71,940$          

Bryan Shirley 28 3,818$                106,904$        

Ben Larson 28 2,745$                76,860$          

Kevin Ryan 28 2,840$                79,520$          

335,224$        

Other LS GC 94,000$          

Total Specified GC Incl with Amendment 8

RFFP Total: 2,007,490$        

Total Specified GC's Included to Date by Amendment

Amount % of Total

Amendment 1 -$               0%

Amendment 2 108,034$       5%

Amendment 3 -$               0%

Amendment 4 162,180$       8%

Amendment 5 -$               0%

Amendment 6 147,112$       7%

Amendment 7 599,220$       30%

Amendment 8 429,224$       21%

Total To Date 1,445,770$   72%

61



ISP Service With Comcast Business for Improved Internet Bandwith and Reliability

Quan Unit Rate Total

75d/15u Internet Service 24 mos 164.90$  3,957.60$        

Single Static IP Address 24 mos 19.95$     478.80$           

Installation fee with 2 year contract 1 ea 99.00$     99.00$             

Subtotal 4,535.40$        

WSST 394.58$           

Total 4,929.98$        

Say : 5,000.00$       

62



Design Document Hyperlinking 

ARC reprographics 

Quan Unit  Cost Total

Specifications (Ea) 264 5 1,320$        

Admin / Maint Specs 59 5 295$           

Drawings

Process Struct 557 7 3,899$        

Addendums 60 7 420$           

Admin / Maint 119 7 833$           

Slipsheet Maint 200 7 1,400$        

Total 8,167$        

Say 8,500$        

63



Project: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Work Item: Electrical, Instrumentation and Control System Date Printed: 9/23/2016

Job No: 5100014 Bid Package: 4a - Electrical File:    BC 4a

Cost

Code

Spec

Section

HCCO

Budget
Valley Electric EC Company Elcon Corp

  

Electrical, Instrumentation and Control System $15,525,295

Base Bid: Electrical Work $8,365,000 $9,001,421 $10,244,050

Base Bid: Instrumentation and Control Work $2,040,000 $2,955,371 $2,700,000

Base Bid: Admin / Maint Bldg Electrical Work $485,000 $528,015 $820,000

Performance and Payment Bonds $64,500 $85,513 $137,640

Base Bid Total  $15,525,295 $10,954,500 $12,570,320 $13,901,690 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Yet to Buy

Total Budget  $15,525,295 $10,954,500 $12,570,320 $13,901,690 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Bid Bond Yes Yes Yes

Addendum No. 1 - 6 Acknowledged Acknowledged Acknowledged

WA License # VALLEES535DE ECCOM**148BA ELCONC*066KQ

Federal ID

Washington UBI

Washington ES Number

DBE Forms Included Included

We recommend that this work be awarded to:  Valley Electric Approved:  Yes ____  /  No ____

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Subcontract/Purchase Agreement Amount:  $10,954,500

600 Stewart Street We recommend that this work be bonded:  Yes

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98101 Estimated Bond Cost:  $16,000

http://www.hoffmancorp.com Hoffman Construction Company By:  ___________________________ ___________________________

Date:  9/23/2016 Date:  ________________

Description of Work

B
id

 C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 /

 A
w

a
rd

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment C-4a 64



Project: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Work Item: Mechanical Systems Date Printed: 9/23/2016

Job No: 5100014 Bid Package: 4b - Mechanical File:    BC 4b

Cost

Code

Spec

Section

HCCO

Budget
University Mechanical Prospect Hawk

  

Mechanical Systems $25,015,065

Base Bid: Process Mechanical Work $18,394,212 $19,080,113 $18,837,000

Base Bid: Installation of MBR Equipment $125,000 $73,000 $216,000

Base Bid: Installation of UV Disinfection Equipment $25,000 $7,000 $20,000

Base Bid: Installation of Solids Belt Dryer $150,000 $178,000 $273,000

Performance & Payment Bonds $100,000 $126,000 $143,000

Base Bid Total  $25,015,065 $18,794,212 $19,464,113 $19,489,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Yet to Buy

Total Budget  $25,015,065 $18,794,212 $19,464,113 $19,489,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Bid Bond Yes Yes Yes

Addendum No. 1 - 6 Acknowledged Acknowledged Acknowledged

WA License # UNIVEMC864RQ PROSPCI022CD HAWKMCI044PD

Federal ID

Washington UBI

Washington ES Number

DBE Forms Included Included Included

We recommend that this work be awarded to:  University Mechanical Approved:  Yes ____  /  No ____

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Subcontract/Purchase Agreement Amount:  $18,794,212

600 Stewart Street, Suite 1000 We recommend that this work be bonded:  Yes

SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98101 Estimated Bond Cost:  Included in bid amount

http://www.hoffmancorp.com

Hoffman Construction Company By:  ___________________________ ___________________________

Date:  9/23/2016 Date:  ________________

Description of Work

B
id

 C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 /

 A
w

a
rd

 R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment C-4b 65



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 66



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 67



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 68



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 69



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 70



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 71



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 72



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 73



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 74



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 75



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 76



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 77



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 78



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 79



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 80



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 81



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 82



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 83



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 84



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 85



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 86



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 87



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 88



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 89



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 90



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 91



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 92



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 93



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 94



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 95



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 96



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 97



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 98



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 99



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 100



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 101



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 102



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 103



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 104



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 105



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 106



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 107



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 108



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 109



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 110



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 111



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 112



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 113



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 114



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 115



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 116



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 117



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 118



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 119



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 120



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 121



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 122



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 123



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 124



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 125



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 126



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 127



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 128



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 129



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 130



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 131



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 132



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 133



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 134



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 135



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 136



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 137



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 138



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 139



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 140



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 141



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 142



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 143



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 144



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 145



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 146



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 147



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 148



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 149



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 150



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 151



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 152



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 153



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 154



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 155



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 156



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 157



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 158



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 159



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 160



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 161



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 162



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 163



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 164



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 165



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 166



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 167



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 168



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 169



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 170



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 171



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 172



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 173



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 174



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 175



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 176



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 177



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 178



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 179



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 180



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 181



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 182



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 183



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 184



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 185



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 186



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 187



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 188



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 189



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 190



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 191



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 192



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 193



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 194



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 195



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 196



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 197



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 198



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 199



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 200



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 201



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 202



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 203



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 204



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 205



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 206



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 207



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 208



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 209



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 210



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 211



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 212



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 213



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment D 214



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment E 215



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment E 216



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment E 217



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment E 218



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment F 219



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment F 220



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment F 221



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment F 222



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133111 

- 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name a11d address or locat/011) 

Oak Barbor Clean W.ter Fac!Uty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status a11d address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak HarbQr. WMfijnston 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hol!maa Construction Company of Washington 
I SOS WistJake Aym\12 N .. Suite 500 
Settle. Wasbjngton 98109 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement. the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agi:cemcnt to estelish a Q1tw1eed MuiMttlft Priee. avthorizc tbe 
Constmctim Manam to procees! wjth the Work of Sjtc Peco A - J>artja! Excavation and 
Arcbeologica! Survey <"Site Prmr A'!) and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the Site Prm A Work and relatijl •NCiOtjated Support Services and Soecified General 
Coniiirions. The Owner and'CjjstrnctiOn Manager anticipate subsequent amendment(s) to 
tbg Agrec;ment to establish a Gtiapnteed Maximum Price for tbc rm aindq of!he Work. 
Jhjs js the Third GMP Ammdinmt fq tbis Project. As agreed by the Owner and 
Construction Manager, die Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum·shal! not e11eeed1 exceed for.the Site Prm A Work and related Negotiates! Suwgrt 
Services and Soccified 'Genera! 'Conditions. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction 
Manager's Fee plus' the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of this 
AgreemenL 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed ES 
r,.Ejght Hundred Thitty-Six Thousand One Huncted Thirty Dollars ($836.130.00) fq the 
Site Prm A WorJc and includes all related Nesotiated Support Services. Specified General 
Conditions, Cootingency. and the Construction Manaeq's Fee of 4.28%, subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
lll! is not jncludCd jn the aboVC amount and wj!I be added to the Cost of the Wor!s. 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingmcies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Pro1'ide below or n fere11ce a11 anac/1me11t.) 

Thls document has lmpcrtant 
legal consequences. 
CansullaUon wilh an attorney 
Is encouraged wilh respect to 
Its completion or modification. 

AtA Document A201 ""-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Is 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do not use with other 
general condlUons unless this 
document Is modified. 

AJA Document A133"' -2009 Eahlblt A. CopyrightO 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The Amark:an lnslltute Df An:hltecta. All rights reserved. WARHING: This 
AJA• Document 19 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlematlonal Treaties. Unauthorized n1procluc:tlon ordlseributlon of this AJA" Document, <rK 1 
..., portion of It, ...., rwult In HVere c:lvll and erlmlnal penaltle1, and will be prosecuted to the maalmum •atn poulble und• the law. Thia 
document was pniduced by AJA llOftware at 08:28:11 on 0lilll9/2015 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 whlc:h explras on 04l22/2016, and Is not far resale. 
User Notes: {18319417501 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 223



lnlt. 

See the Ho[man Construction Company GMP Ameodmcnt No. 3 Recapitulation for SjJe frm A - Partial 
Excavation and Archeologiql Swvey. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(Slate tlie 1111mbers or other identificatio11 of accepted altemates. /f tlie Co11tract Doc11ments pem1it tlie Owner to 
accept oilier alternates subseq11ellt to tlie execution of this Ame,,dme111. attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amo1mt for eacll a11d the date wlien the amo1111t expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Pcrfonnance Bond. included within the above prjce. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and state e:cclmions, if a1!)', from tire a/fowa11ce price.) 

Item 
' Arcbco!ogical discovsrjq 

Dcwatcr!ne 

Price ($0.00) 
$57.114.00 
$14.400.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffman Construction ComDaDv GMP Amendment No. 3 Recapitulation for Site Prco A· Panjal 
Exavatjoo and ArchaeoloSjcal Survey. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: See the Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Preparation and Archeologica! Exolm tjon 
TcchniCal Specifi cations elated June 8. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maidmurn Price 
Amendment. 

Doc:umant Title Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications l1ere. or refer to a11 e.Tl1ibit attaclred to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wu1cwa1er Treatment Plant Sjte Pre;paratjon and Archeologica! Ewloratim Technical Soecifications 
c!atcc! Jvni S. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maximum Ptjcc AD1endmc:nt. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an e:x/1iblt attac/1ed to tliis Agreeme11t.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Clean Water facility Sjte Preparation and Arclteo!ogical Exploration PacJsage dated June 8. 201 S and 
other documeots list·cd in thjs Guaranleed Maximum Price Amendment 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(list any other doc11me11ts or i11fom1atio11 here. or refer to a11 e.Thibit attached to this Agreeme111.) 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washjngton Pcoanment of Ecology fimd jng requirements including the 
Water POllUtion Control Revolving Fund Spscjfications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance wjth !he City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21. 2015. 

ARTICLE A:I. 
I § A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion for Site Peco A Work established by this Amendment: 

AIA Document AU31M - 2009 Exhllllt A. Copyright 0 1991, 2003 llld 2009 by The American lnstltu1e of An:hltacts. All rtg"'9 rallmld. WARNING: This 
AIA• Document I• pnitecttld by U.S. Copyright Law and lnc.matlonal TIWlllln. Unauthorized 1Wprocluctlon 0t dlstrlbullan of this AIA8 Document. or 2 
my portion of It, mmy Mull In....,.,. ctvn and crlmlnlll jMNl!tln, end will be proMCUted to the mulmum utent poslllble under the llw. This 
doc:umllnt wat produced by AIA IOllwanl at 08:28:11 on 06l09l201S under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which expires on 04/22/2016, and 19 not far l1IS8le. 
UNI' Notes: (1831941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 224



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 225



Certlflcatlcm of Document's Authenticity 
AfA®'Document D401TM- 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and bclier, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certillcation at 08:28: II on 06/09/2015 under Order No. 
1248342233_1 fi'om AlA Contract Documents sol\ ware and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
chflflges to th~ original text of AIA10 Document AIJJTM- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AlA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and strik. ng over deleted text. 

------~ ( v_~-+-(__;r 5==----------
roaredJ 

AlA Documont 0401"'- 2001 Cop~lf)ht 0 1992 and 2003 by The Amerlc:onlnaUMII of .Alehltacts. All tlghtu 1'11118rvod. WARNING: Thlu AIA0 Document Is 
protected by U.S, Copylfght t..ow and lnlomattonal Treatloo. Unauti\Qiiufl roproduetlon or dlalrlbutlon of lhls AIAQ Document, or any portion of It, 1 
may mutt In IHIV&I'il clvU Md criminal panal!leu, and wHI be proG<Jcu!Mito the mW<Imum extent poll!llblo undor tho raw. Thl9 docLO'llent was produced by 
AlA software at 06·28:11 or1 05/09/20151Rldar0rdar No.1240342233_1 which OI<JlilllB on0<1122J201&, 11M lo notror reaillo. 
Uaer Notllll: (1031941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 226



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY n OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 
Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 3 Recapit ulation 
Site Prep A - Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey 

1 Direct Cost of Work 

2 Site Prep A 
3 Allowances for Archaeological Discoveries 
4 Allowance for Dewatering Pumping 
5 Total Direct Costs 

6 
7 Negotiated Support Services 

8 
9 

10 
11 

See Detail 

Total NSS 

12 
13 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

14 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% of Direct Costs 
15 
16 Total Dlrect+NSS+Risk Contlng. 
17 
18 Specified General Conditions 
19 
20 Sub Bonds 
21 
22 Sub-Total 
23 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

546,562 
57,114 
14.400 

618,076 

152,834 

770.909 I 

21,633 

192.541 I 

9,271 

801.812 I 
24 GCCM Fee at 4.28% $ 34.318 

25 ..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,r--~~~~~-, 
26 TotalGMPCostThisAmendment IS 836.130 I 
27 Washington State Sales Tax@8.7% $ 72.743 
28 Total Amendment No 3 (lncls Sales Tax) I $ 908,872 I 

Previously Issued Amendments (Including WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 
GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 
Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment incl WSST 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

790,050 
2,775,456 
2.1§4.488 
6,638,866 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 227



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUC'nON COMPANY noF-
BUILDING 
LOCA TION 
ENGINEE R 
SU BJECT 

o •. H • ••• . c ... . .. w .. .. f .. .... . 
O • • H . .... , W'4 
c . ... . 
GMP [ ••• .,. S • • P •• • A 

"'"•' Oe•••• u•• 
BuUdlna Gross .<:nuare ...,,,,,_ 

Reid Dintion 

DIVISION i! - EXISTING CONDITIONS 
0241 13 s •.• u ••• s.,. o .......... .. 
oz., 18 s ..... ..... o . ... ..... .. 
024119 s . .. .... . e ...... n. o .. .......... .. 
025000 S ... R. - . ........ .. 
021000 w •••. ~ .... .. ........ .. 
OZIOOO F ...... R.- ....... . 

DIVISION JI - EA RTllWORX 
312200 G . • • • o 

312300 E. . . ......... F.,, 
312319 o .......... . 
312500 E . . . ........ $.,,. __ ., ,., ....... c ... , ... , 
31 <COCO S .... ., .. ,. . ... . u .... . ... ,,,,,, .. "' 
31 tlCIO O.,, ... P., .. . 
316100 & ... ... P .... . 

SUBTOTAL. DIA.[CT COSTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONSANSIJRANCE 
G •• •• • • c ........ . 
s • ., a ... ,,. . 
P ...... .. . . B .. .. 
PL & POt .. ....... . . 
8 .. .. ... . , R,, . 1 ...... . ... . 
B&OT •• 

NEGOTIATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
DESIGN & EST/MA TING CONnNCENCY 
GCCM RISK CONTINGENCY 
GCCMFEE 

TOTAL. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 

SAL£STAX 
s ..... .. . .... s •... 1 •. 

S .. . P •• ., A 

TO!Al . E.:>llt.IATED GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

E .. 
o .. u •• 

0 

0 

t .. 
1 .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

I .. 
I .. 
t .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

1 .. 
I 5% •• 

r ·-
F • • 

NSS 

··-
I .. 

.1'·!'.\ 
1 .. 

~ IO'i< •• 

S ... P . • ,. A ~2 

PROJECT csr ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• 
P ... . 

S )l 4S!i, 56 

1000 
1000 
>ODO 
5000 

SSS l lO 88 
1263 88• 96 
S6U38 00 

S129 798 40 

$0.00 
SGIB.015 80 

F •• 
F • • 

NSS 
F • • 

51 52 83•00 
1000 

5818 015 80 
n• 311 &2 

Hl6 1'l1 

P . ,. .. i .,, 6, 

s ... 

111 •8& 

10 
10 

s8n11 
5263 805 
161 536 

1129 798 

S6 1B 076 

50 
U 2'1 

f •• 
f •• 
NSS 
f • • 

11 52 83' 
so 

S21 6Jl 
SJ< 318 

$836,131 

172 HJ 

,..,...175 

T ••• • P • ., • •• 
c ••. 

S71 486 
so 
so 
10 
so 
so 

185 371 
S263 885 

167.536 
s 12g198 

10 
so 
so 

$618 076 

F • • 
r •• 

so 
S9 21 1 

'155 
F •• 

S1 52 834 
so 

S21.633 
U 4 318 

$838.131 

s 72 14 3 

$908,875 

JOB NO 51 0001' 
ESTIMATOR IH T 

CHFCKED BY CAB 
DATE 61' 11 S> 

DWG DATE 

'···· c • • Jo .•••••• 

S7l 486 

$5•6 51)() 

SG l 8 076 

S118 055 

c •• • ••.. 

OOO'lo .. . .. . . . .... . 

1 . ...... •• F •• 

1 .... q .... .. ,., tiSS 
1 .. .., .., ....... F .... 

N . .. . , • • SP Jt. 

4 281' •• ,. •• , . ..... . , . 

$838.131 

112 70 

S908.875 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 228



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ,-,OFWAIHINmlN 
BUILDING 
LOCATION 
ENGINEER 
SUBJECT 

A • .,, 

Q .. . H . . .... C .... . \V •• r "" "" ' 5,.. P . ... A 
O ... tt .. , .... Wflo. 
c ...... 
GMP E •• ,...... S ... P .• ,. A 

u ... ..... . 

c ..... ... , ,, .• , ....... : 

c .. 
o. 

S .. .. A11 .. . ... ,. S .... , ,., , A, . -••-* • t; . . ..... ... .. .. , ... .. £ . ... ... ... .. . 

S ., . p . .. . A ,2 

PROJECT CSI ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• I P ..... s •. u •• 
I 

r . •• J .. . & 

JOB NO \ 100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHEC(ED BV CAB 
DATE GJ111S 

owe; DATE 

I f ••u P••i•'"' I T • •" I c •.. c •• Jo .•••.•• 
I I I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 229



R0n')1.\S CO~STRUCTtO:'l COMPA.lll(y 
er \\'ASIUJ\'.GTON 

5, . P ••• A.2 

LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS. CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

BUILDING o ... H . ...... Ci.en Wet• • Fu ;oi.t :r S.r. p, • • A 
LOCATION Q. , H..... WA 
ENGINEER C . ..... 
SUBJECT L. ., • ' A .. ... ... ~ .... , & c ,. o"r•••••u P ....... . . E. ,,..,. . u 

BASIS OF ESTIMATE 
~ ... o._. 

1 6/3/1 5 HCC 
2 6/411 5 HCC 

1. 6/4/15 HCC 
4 
s 
~ 

7 

" 
ASSUMP1IONS OlJAl!E!CAJQNS INCL l/S!ONS AND EXCLUSIONS· 
~OM A.oo D•o••••n 

1. Hr r 
? Hr r 

HCC 

HCC 

1.1 r r 

6. 
1 
A 
Q 

11 
12 
n ,. 

Ill 

n ,, 
,. ,. 
26 

'"· on 

31 
12 

,. 

1A 

41 

44 
45 

47 

•• 
4Q 

51. 

• ..... S.,. P ••• A •• ., ~ . . .. 

o ... ., ....... .. 

N. • , .... .. .. , ""'"o,.. ar •• • '" " " "' "' , .., ,,.6 1M •• d 

108 NO 5100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHECKED ev CAB 
DATE &111 5 

DWC.. DATE 0 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 230



Site Prep A r2 
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Site Prep A ESTIMATE NO. 5100014 
LOCATION: Oak Harbor , WA ESTIMATOR: THT 
ARCHITECT: Carollo CHECKED BY: CAB 
SUBJECT: Division 2 Summary DATE: 6/1/15 

Dwr... nATE: 0 
TOTAL ES T UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST TOT/IL EST 

ACCT Df<;r.RIPTION OF WORK n llANTITY UNIT LABOR • ARnRCOST MTL MTL COST COST 

02 4113 
,_ 

CIHa -

Demolish Asnhall P"vfnn 48000 sf I0.7' 134 733 
Demo curbs Planters and Tr....., 60 tns S234.36 '-14 OR? 
Demo Undemround Utlllties 490 If 124.30 111907 
CaoUtillties ea incl 
Demo Site Liaht Pnl- and Circuits 6 ea !1:1 080.00 S6480 
Demo Uoht Pole Bases 6 ea C:'U2.36 520541 
Prntect Fire Hvdrant 1 ea !l:."'10.00 S500 

Protect monilorino wel 1 8 " 1250.nn $250 
Relocate Postal Service Gano Box 1 ea 11 500.00 S1 500 

171486 

!!:71486 571486 
Subcontractor GC, Eouic. OH&P incl 

Total, S.....,. Sect. 02 4113: ---> $71486 

Page 5 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 231



Site Prep A r2 

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Q • k Harbor C1aan Wacor Fe c-111t:t . Sil• Prop A ESTIMATE NO 51 0001 4 
LOCATION Q .... Harbor . WA ESTIMATOR. THT 
ARCHITECT- C., .... CHECKED BY- CAB 
SUBJECT- D1v1 ·1 .. on 31 Summuy DATE: 611115 

DWG- DATE. 0-J •• 00 
fOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST 101AI l Sl 

ACC T DESCRIPTION OF WORr; QUANTITY UNIT LABOR LABOR COST MH MTL COST COS! 

312200 r. .• ~·- -
Erau 1p m •"l mo b 111• a u on end d•moD1h 1t Dt1on 1 .. $39.000.00 $39.000 
Str ip 6 "' T opsotl •t Guas Ar •eu & Disp oso 2,700 .. $3.41 $9.215 
p,.•P and r ock hau l ro•d to stoc:koll• (515. 201 10.300 ., $1.62 $1 6.686 
Pr. a • nd roc k •cc••• roa d lo B••k•m• tt v RV P. , ... 0 " $1.62 so dete r 

Ramps into e1ca v H1 0n (6' high• 20' w ld a) 10:1 ..,...l\ h pad 729 ... $28.08 $20.470 

$85.371 $85,371 
S uocontroc:tor GC, Equip , OH&P tf'ICI 

Toto•, S.oc . s •••. 31 2200: - -> lln~,.J/ I 

31 2300 i ~ , .. ., ., - .. "'a n• F&u 
U nraslrt c-t. oa £ 111 cov•t•on at E 'llltStl ng Fm · P.'"' '"9 Ar • • 9,219 ... $9.75 $89.881 
~chaeolo u 1~•11y s.".IUVO Eicco wot;on 

6" Cut.•, cioonup bu 1; 1t•t. h•\11 to 1o100 111.p1tu 6.981 D<v $15.66 $109.330 
Auow•nc• fa,. Vacuum E•covotjon i8 1o c atton " ) 20 "" $378.00 $7.560 

A11ow•nc• to,. 1/2 p,.oduatlon r' oto ••c • vet.1on 698 ... $21 .17 $14 .778 
As1ow•nc• tor l,; row St.•ndby (••ngl• c ' ew} 40 "'" $1 .058.40 $42.336 

$263.885 

$263.885 $263.885 
Sub c onu- o cno,. GC, Equ i p, OH&P i nlOI 

I oUI , Speo . Soot. 31 23 00: - ------> >LO.>,<><>:> 

31 2319 10 -.w•t•r• • ... 
A 11 owanc• ror pu m po n l'I 12 wk • $1.200.00 $14.400 
Ecc. 1o~:r Stock W,.u D r ain 1.200 ,, $44.28 $53.136 

$67.536 

$67.536 S67,536 
Suoco~vuot•r GC, Equ 1~ , OH&P lrtC:t 

To•••· Sp•• · s •••. 31 2319: --··> .>Dt ,::J.>C 

312500 E',.""" . ....... ·-- s.d ..... -..... "Co -- I 

TESC M .... u, .~ 0\ St.oc ltpll•• 40.500 .. $0,77 $31 .055 
S11t..r •no o ot. we tlond bou nda r ,. wes t o oc ••• l" O lld 0 " $5.40 $0 d o tor 

Snt F on c o 11t. soulft bou n d •r'Y of B eok t mo a ccoaa rood do te r 

D u"t: Conirot wot.O r' uu e lil. 8 wko $1.500.00 $12.000 
Du a\ cont.t'OI •weepel' 8 wk• $1 .250.00 $10.000 

Sundsrd E co4o a'JI 8 1o ck Roulnll'\Q Wau ( 2 h rah) 222 .. $102.60 $22.743 
U1uo Bock R oto 1n •no Wou (J hlahl 313 .. $172-80 $54.000 

$129.798 

$129.798 $129. 798 
Subconuoct.or GC, Equi p . OH&P uu; I 

T ... ,. s •••. S •• •. 31 25 00: -······> :)l .nt ,/tfC 

I 
I 

division 1.ot•t: 5546,590 

Page 6 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 232



Hottrn•n Constructto"I Comp•"11' 

Building' Q • .., Hert.or Cl••" Wu.r Fa c im, E.i.a"'•t.• S""'"'. ' " Job No : 5109214 
locadon : Oak Ha r boll" . WA Preco n ·> SheH Na : 1 
E ... ,,. • • ,: C .. · 0 110 c. ,. ..: ·> 8 e .... "'.,.,: THT 
Su lloJnt: GMPA .... ,. d ... . ,.,3 ·· 5,,. P .. . . A GSF -> o ... ; 6/3/15 

E. u ... oud L ••• ,. E." '"•t•d M.~ E.u ....... T otel 

Ac et Oe • crllP UO" o ....... uc11' UOM u,.,, .. lo • or Un" M .... ,,., Ca•t Noi. • 
006088 Bulld•r• R1.1it l,..u .. •nce 1 .. 0 17.820 17.820 , 7 .820 NSS ,.,. pr•"''" m 

007001 SuP•' Wl•lon 

Ome• M•n•a•r • Fuu T • .,.. 0 w. 1,000 0 0 0 Amond 2 
s.,H)I Mar . 2 ... ,.1,.,.. 0 Oe)'I 443 0 0 0 A .. . ,.. 2 

007012 Super• llOrJ' T r a v el 

T, .... , ,. ..... b • • NSS 8 w .. 0 250 2.000 2.000 

007026 P 1a 11-• & B•u•p r1nn 

M ••e-a llanaou • 0 .0 Mo 0 250 0 0 NSS 

007060 Equip Ra .. 101· Hott"'•" LS 0 0 0 
Raa •o • • 4 •• 0 w •• 0 19 0 0 NSS 
P1a il •vp • lea J.,, s . .. ,, ,c•• OW1ita 0 150 0 0 NSS 

M11 c 10.0 w •• 0 300 3.000 3,000 NSS 

007061 f._ulp RatUal • Q,,..,,.. 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS 
fo , a. uf\ 10 --· 0 900 9.000 9.000 rr 

007063 Ga• , Ou & Ma1"'•"•nc• 
G •• . Ou & F .... , · E ••• R.cua. 12,000 0 0.20 2.400 2.400 NSS 

007080 U,.. T • • •• an Matorl a la 8 .7% PC 0 -2.600 ·226 -226 

007083 T • • anO frll'\OO 

007098 c.,.. pwt•r c .... ,v•• 0 w •• 0 50 0 0 

010500 Sur"•Y & La,.0 1n 

S ... ,..,.,, (oa "ty or 2) 10 d•1'• 0 1.700 17.000 17.000 NSS 

015100 T •"'P E t eovlo al SF 0 0.22 0 O NSS 
Pow•' D1au1bu1ion U"1t 0 E. 0 3.500 0 0 NSS 
P.- . .. Cord• & Sp•d•r• 0 LS 0 0 NSS 

015110 UtHttJ•• P • .,.,.,. Raimtt Mo 0 650 0 0 B, Owno< 

015120 Uc.nu •• W ••• , 0 Mo 0 100 0 O NSS 
T•mp Wu.rConnac1.& Ram 0 LS 0 2.250 0 0 w1U•

0

am•"'* 2 

015150 T •'"P s •. ut.atiOfl 

L•v•n•• • 2 ••c._ 0.0 Mo 0 0 0 0 whh a"'af\1:1 2 
Handw••" St•t1•11 • 1 ..... 0.0 M. 125 0 0 .... tt. .. amefld 2 

Drop Bo••• and Otapoaa t 0 , •• 0 750 0 0 with amend 2 

015180 Tamp W•ter 0 .0 Mo 0 160 0 0 .., Ith amend 2 

015200 T •mo . Suucu.ira• 
WIS Di..Udlng otn•• ••tup 

C•rpt1t ,epa lr 0 LS 0 1,500 0 0 NSS 
Roor R•P•'' 0 LS 0 1.750 0 0 NSS 
Tot1a1. room r1uur•• and "•P• lr 0 LS 0 1.250 0 0 NSS 
Mtsc. T •mp. 5' .. uct. 2 Mo 6.000 250 6.250 NSS 

015210 T •Mp P,. otao~•n 

Raacota la1td•caOl"G at. L•,.down 0 •• 0 0 0 ••tartonna t g""p 

Arcnaaologlcat S•na1U¥a P.,.,...,.,. 0" 8 0 Owltnamaftd2 

015220 T .... ,, R • ••• & p. , •• ,.. 
Ou at Con«-ol 0 .0 M. 0 750 0 0 ..... , • • , ••• , 

01 5240 T.,..P W oo 8 ••• 0 CY 0 10 0 0 
Tamp S coc1a ,ua aroa 0 .. 0 4.15 0 0 In dlr• a & C IU I 

Print Date: 6/~/m15 PagelofZ FotmRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 233



Hotrm•·" C.nu1· u cc1. ,. c • .; •• "• 

8u11 ~1n 9 : o .... Hu111or c, •• " Wu111r Feont•y E•"'"•U Su,..,,..,.,_ J.111 No: 5109214 

L•••••on: a •• Hue.or , WA Proe:an -> s,, •• t N.: 1 

Eno•"•• ' : c.,.. 11. c. "' .,-, . 8 E.v,,..,o,; THT 
s ... , •• a: GM"P A rot •1Ul,.UM 3 u-s~. p,., .A GSF ·• One! 6/3n5 

Euim•ud L.-.., Est1rq°aud M.a E.v ,,.•u• Tou• 
Aect o •• cne;ci.,, Ouof'IUty UOM U"" Lob or u.,, M ... ,.,. , c .... No••• 

015282 o ... .,. T ••U 35 •• 0 85 2.975 .. 2,975 NSS 

" 015290 f1rscA1d 0 LS 0 1.200 0 Q wlCJ\ •"'end 2 

015300 B . ,.,.lcocl•• ond F • .,, c-fng 

T •"'P fo,..co Ronuf 1,455 LF 0 0.6 87l 873 NSS 
Sotup and R • .., .... , 1.455 LF 1.35 1.964 1.964 NSS 
20' T,.uclt Gu.et 1 .. 450.00 450 450 NSS 
P ........ ""• ' G., •• 2 •• 225.00 450 450 NSS 
F•"•• a ..... , . K R.u 66 •• 75.00 4,928 4.928 NSS 
Ro111ng oc • • • llll O • li. wall 1.290" 15.00 19.350 19,350 NSS 

5 200 1.000 150 750 1,750 NsS 
015800 Consfr.,cUo" S 1111 n • 650 650 650 NSS 

ProJoet Stons 

0 .0 M. 0 800 0 Q wlU\ a "'end 2 
015920 F 0 Eq,..lpmont & SuPJl ~ lt 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 E.1.u,.9 

f urnt1uro 0 .0 M. 450 0 Q w it~ a"'and~ 
Doc., m one Printer/So• n no,. 0 .0 LS 0 1.500 0 Q w lO• •"'Ond 2 
Oocu'" ont Pr1n1or "'0111/da moll 0 mo 0 40 0 0 WIU• •rn•nd 2 
Scanner 0 ,0 mo 0 100 0 0 wnh amontS 2 
F •• 0 Mo 0 50 0 Q wll,, •'"•nCI 2 
Owner'• Troller Fw,,. & Equip 

0.0 Mo 0 850 0 0 WICh Ofll•fl'd 2 
015940 Pho"• & Po-nao• 0 E. 0 750 0 0 .... n,. • .,..,.. 2 

T oC,l•cComputor• 2o• 0.0 M. 0 125 0 Q with alfto"d 2 
Dou Lu,. •nd Motnc 

GI• • • Ctean t .. 11 

017990 Jota s._..,.,:.. 0 MH 100 0 0 OwlU••m•fla2 
Es • •v•t•d 1aoct "'ontcor / dtr•C:IDr 8 wk• 3,800 30.400 30.400 

033062 Canon ·• • • Pu,..pln9 0 0 0 0 

37,400 115,434 152.834 0 

Print Date: 6/4/2D15 l'lplafl FormRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment G 234



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment H 235



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment H 236



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment H 237



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment H 238



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment I 239



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment I 240



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment I 241



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment I 242



lnlL 

I AIA Document A133 .. -2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

far the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water f1cillty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal ;status and addn!M) 

Citv of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrjnglm Drive 
Oak Harbor. Wasbinl!lon 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Homup Copstrgctlon ComRpy of Wasbl-cton 
1 SOS Westlake Avenue N .. Sui1e soo 
Seattle. Washington 98 I 09 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Gu11"1Ateed Mulmum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreemenl, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estal911slt a Gwleed ManimHlll Pflee. authorize the 
Constmctjm Manager to proceed wjth the Work of Site Prep C • Microoile Installation 
and to establish a Guaranleed Maximum Price for !he Site Prep C • Miqopjle Installation 
Work and related Negotiated Suoport Senices and Specified General Conditions. The 
Owner and Coos1ruction Manaaq anticjoale svmuent amendmentCsl to the Agreement 
to establish a Guaran•eecl Maximwn P,lce for tbe remajnder of the Work. This is lhe Sixth 
OMP Amendniait for Ibis Project. As agreed by the OWner and Consaruction Manager, the 
Guaranteed Maximwn Price is an amount that the Conlract Sum shall not aeee.t. ~ 
for the Sjte Pren C • Mjcro0ile Installation and related Negotiated Supoort Seryic:es and 
Specified General Conditions. The Conlract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's 
Fee plus the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 oflhis Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed {S 
)..Three Million Nine Hundred Sixtv-Six Thousand Five Hundred Three Dollars 
CS3.9§6.S03.00l for the Site Prep C- Mjqppilc Jnstpll&tion WorJc. which ContJJct Sum 
includes all related Nenotiated Suooort Services. Specified General Conditions. 
Contin11ency. and lhe Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to additions and 
deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract DocumenlS. Sales tax is not 
included in the above amount and wjl! be added lo the Cost oflbe Work, 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximwn Price. 
(Provide below or reference an allachmenL) 

This document hn lmpcr1ant 
legal consequences. 
Consultatlon with 1n .uomev 
Is encouraged with raped to 
Its ccmpleUon or modlricallon. 

AIA Document A201 111-2007. 
General Concfdlons d the 
Contract for ConstNctlon, ii 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do nol UH with other 
general conditions unlm this 
document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1lJ .. - 200I Elhlblt A. COpyrighl C 1 H t. 21lD3 and 2009 by The American lnltitule of An:hjtects. All rights nt111Vlld. WARNING: Thlll 
AIA• Document I• protec:t9d by U.S. Copyright Law ind lntem1Uon1I r .. 1t1es. Un1uthor1zed 1'9production or distribution of thl1 AIA• Documenl, or 1 
111y portion of It, may mun In 11111e111 clvll ind crtmlnal l*!lllln, and will be prDMClltld to the mulmum utent posalllle under tht law. Thll =:":r..W:-1 produced by Alo\ IOftware at 01138:'tftFO~etit9~M~-1~flR1~1,ttvtllch espltes on D412212D1e, and 11 not ror res11te 

111211547921) CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 243



Jnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction ComQl!'ly GMP Amendment No. 6 RecapjtyJatjon for Site Pcm C - Mjqopile 
Installation. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alrcmates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and arc hereby accepted by lhe Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner to 
accept other alternates subsequent to the exec11tlon of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternales 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subconblctor Pavment and Perfonnance Bond. jnclydcd wjthjn the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranleed Maximum Price, if any: 
(ldentlfl allowance and slate exclusions, If any, from the alloH'ance price.) 

n..n 
Ccmnection to new outftll 

Price ($0.00) 
$310.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Asswnptions, if any, on which the Gwnnteed Maximwn Price is based: 

Sec dJc Hoffinm Construction Comoany GMP Ameodmeot No. 6 Rec;apitu!ation for Sjte Pn;o c • Miqo0ile 
lngl!atjon. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Ounnlecd Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplcmcntery and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

1. Addenda I tbrough 4. 

2. Hoffinan Rccommendalion of Award, 

3. Site Pren C - Mlqoojlg Rec!uest for Proposal. 

D11U1111Rl 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guanmteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
{Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit at/ached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment PIUJt Micro0ile Packasc Technical Specifications dated November 2015. 

Stdlon Datl 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawinp here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor W15tmler Treatment Plant Qctobq 2015 Miqopjle Pac!sage 90% Pesf1m. 

Number Title Dltl 

Pages 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon Che following other documents and infonnation: 
(List any other documents or information hen, or refer to an exhibit altoched to this Agreement.) 

ConstnJc:tjon Manggq shall com01y wjth Wasflington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Conb'OI Reyolv!ng Fwd Specifications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manaaer will wforrn 
con51ruc:tjon activities in acconlancc with theCjty of Oak Harbor Cyltl!'a! Resources Memorandwn ofAvcemeot 
IDDrOved April 21. 2015. 

AIA Dowmetlt A1:13,.-200t EiihlbltA. COpyriglltC 11191 , 2003 Ind 200t1 by TneAmeflcln lnttilU!eolArc/llledl. All rlghta rwHrVmd. WARNING: Thi& 
AJA• DcM:umtnt 19 pruttcttd by U.S. Copyright L.IW and lnteml1lon11 Trtatln. Un•uthortzed rwpniducUon or dlstTlbuUon of lhls ~A· Oocumtnt, or 2 
any portion of It. may mull In'""'""' clvU and crlmln•I ptnaltln, and wlll be prvncuted to th• m1almum extent posatbl1 unctor th• law. Thlt 
documlnt wa produced by AJA toftwn 8109 38 2• on 01/08/2011 under Order Ho.124B34223:U wtllch expires on 04122l2011. Ind Is not tor r9Slle 
UHr Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 

(92H<t7821) 
CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 244



lnlt. 

ARTICLE A2. 
§ A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by 1his Amendment: 

December 29. 2017. 

CONsTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

ROBERT T. SEVERNS 

(Printed name and tllle) (Printed name and title) 

'G'~- ~...,. 

AIADoe&1menlAU3•-20ot ElChlbltA. CopyrightC 11111, 2003111112009bylheAmericln lnslitute otArdlltecb. Al lights rnerved. WARNING: This 
AJA• Document Is P"'tectad by U.S. Copyr1ght Law 1nd lntlmltlonal Tn111tltt. unall1hostnd r1producUon or dlatnbutlon of tta NA• Document, or 3 
any polt.lon or It, may mull In .. ,,.,.. clvll and crtmlnal penalties, 1nd wUI b1 proHCllled to the m1aJmum 111tent poulbl• under the law. Tllil 
doc:lnent waa l)Rlduced by AIA IOftWare 11 oe·311fi1111 Ol§IAP~~~ wtllch explrea on 04/2212018, and II not ror reuia. 
UHrNota: 

(112M47D21) CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 245



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best or my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that 1 created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 08:48:55 on 01 /07/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233 I from AJA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AIAe Document A 133rn - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striki g over deleted text. 

(fitle) 

(Dated) 

AIA Document 0401"' - 2003. Copyright 0 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Aldlilecla • .lill rights IHUvtd. WARNING: Thia AJA" Document 11 
prut.cted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlllmallonal TreallH , Un1uthork9d reproduction or dlatributlon of tide AIA" Document, or any portion of It, 1 mt)' rqutt In nvere i:IYll and cr!mlnal penaltlH, and will be proncut.cl to the mulmum extent ponlble under tha 1-. Thia document was produced by 
AlA 1altware al 08 48:55 on 01 10712016 under Order No.12483-42233_ 1 which eJCplre1on04/22/2016, and 11 not for resale. 
U11rNot11a: 

(1247~276) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 246



=--..HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - 1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 Recapitulation 

Site Prep C -- Micropile Installation 

Direct Cost of Work 

Micro-pile installation 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 1 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 2 and Cap Break at 

Headworks Area 

Sheet pile adjustment for tower crane ftg 

Site flood protection dike 

Connection to new outfall (Allowance) 

Total Direct Costs 

Negotiated Support Services 

CJA 

Pell co 

Pell co 

CJA 
Pellco 

TBD 

Negotiated Support Services HCC 

Tower Crane Foundation and Crane Erection 

Procurement of Diesel Pump for Plant WWF Xylem 

Total NSS 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 

Specified General Conditions 

Sub-Total 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 

Total GMP Cost 

Washington State Sales Tax@ 8.7% 

Total Amendment No 6 (Incl. Sales Tax) 

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 

GMP Amendment No 1-- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

s 
s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

7-Jan-16 

Rev 2 

2,087,050 

73,149 

32,513 

54,108 

9,000 

310,000 

2,565,820 

558,105 

243,415 

98,624 

900,144 

3,465,964 I 

121,309 

69,319 

3,656,592 I 

147,112 

3,803,104 I 

162,799 

3,966,503 I 
345,086 

4,311,5891 

790,050 

2,553,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

5,109,549 

2,028,222 

11,215,020 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 247



L.J HOFFMAN CONSTRUcnON COMPANY 
,...., OF WASHIMJTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 -Addition of Micropiles 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 
16 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (4 mos) 

NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (4mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce -- BIM modeling (8 hours per week x 16 weeks) 

NSS 
NSS 007012 Temp housing (16 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction Photographs 

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints 

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Initial crane operator ( 6/19/16 - 7/19/16) 

NSS 01S7SO Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (4weeks) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) 

NSS 00706S Transport Equipment 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (4 months) 

NSS 0157SO Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7 /31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension (16 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 4 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters (4 each x 16 weeks) 

HCC 

Larson 

Pell co 

Malcolm 

NWTC 

Morrow-HCC 

Ness 

Ness 

Kent 

ETI 

NWTC, Morrow 

HCC 

Garner 

Garner 

Condon 
Morrow 

Triad Mach 

Triad Mach 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

&n2l!!!1 Comment 

$ 4,312.00 

$ 20,368.00 

$ 47,120.00 

$ 12,800.00 

$ 6,000.00 

$ 
$ 
Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

$ 68,850.00 

$ 2,359.00 

$ 9,5S3.00 

$ 14,960.00 

$ 23,300.00 

$ 13,000.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 3S,648.00 

$ 8,765.00 

$ 1,830.00 

$ 5,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 17,780.00 

$ 17,340.00 

$54,108 - carry in directs 

$ 16,550.00 FOB Jobsite per Morrow 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 59,372.00 

$ 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 2,400.00 

$ 70,160.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 

$ 1,216.00 

Add radios for operators 

$ 304.00 and bellman 

$ 600.00 

$ 2,400.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 248



§ml!R 

NSS 
~ Description 

007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007063 Fuel and Main! on Diesel Pump 

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 
NSS 007098 Computer Charges (16 weeks) 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
Direct 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month) 

010500 Ming Survey 9Sst and 117ot {768hrs ST and lOhrs OT) 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 

Berming of site perimeter (flood protection dike) 

01S300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 4 months 

01S300 Fence Rental Extension (4 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (4 months) 

015280 First Aid/ Water Stations (4 each - Purchase) 

NSS OlSlOO Temporary Electric 

TC OlSlOO Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' 

Answering 

Innovations 

Ming 

Soundview 

Pell co 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 16 weeks) 

NSS 01Sl50 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 16 weeks) 

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter -- field office 

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (16wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 

NSS 015200 Second stair tower rental (12 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 16 weeks) 

NSS 015282 Drug Tests (50 ea) 

NSS 015800 Signage (20/ea @ 150) 

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (4 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage 
NSS 017990 Job Services (16 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #ffl - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

$ 25,247.00 

$ 1,965.00 

$ 10,982.00 

$ 800.00 

$ 520.00 

$ 74,060.00 

$ 4,965.00 

In direct costs 

$ 2,244.00 

$ 1,300.00 

$ 640.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 16,000.00 

3ea 4" conduits x 2001f 

$ 3,600.00 w/SO Cord 

$ 6,750.00 

$ 24,260.00 

ByCOH 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 4,250.00 

$ 750.00 

$ 3,200.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 54,400.00 

$ 801,520.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 249



Specified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 12 $ 3,270 $ 39,240 
Bryan Shirley 14 $ 3,818 $ 53,452 
Ben Larson 16 $ 2,745 $ 43,920 

$ 136,612 

Other LS GC $ 10,500 

Total Specified GC $ 147,112 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 
CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 250



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
Job No: 5100014 

Cost Dacriptio• of Work Spec HCCO 
Code Section Bud .. t 

Bid Co,..,,nrison - Microollts 01340 $2,901,440 
Pavment & Perfonnance Bonds 

Unit Price for Obstruction Abandonment of Piles 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Unit Price for Addition of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for l 5 oiles 

Unit Price for Deletion of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for JO oiles 

Unit Price for Add/Reduce Micro Pite Leni?th 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Total Bid Amount S2,901,440 
Yd to Buy 

Totol Bud1et $2,901,440 

Bid Bond 
Addendum No. 1 - 4 
WA License# 
Federal ID 
Washinlrton UBI 
Washington ES Number 
DBE Forms 

w HOfFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

1505 WESTlAKE AVENUE NORTlf, sum 500 

n SEJ.Tn.E. WASHINGTON 98109 

http://www.hoffmi!lncorp.com 

Work Item: Bid Comparison - Microplles 
Bid Package: #1- Site Prep C 

Condon .. Jolrin100 Donald Morphy Malcom Drillinc Budincer 

$2,071,000 $2,1 15,000 $2,649,000 $2,924,431 

$16.050 $18 050 $26.825 $23.500 

$6,000 $14,000 $5,000 $41,600 
$3Mf $70/lf S25/l S208/lf 

$52,500 $79 500 SI05,000 $204,750 
$3500/eaoh S5300/each S7000/each S13650/each 

IS20,000) ($21,000) IS20,000) ($136.500) 
S2000/oach $2100/each S2000/each S 13650/each 

Sl0.200 S18,000 $18.000 $41,600 
$51/lf $90/lf S90/ll $208/lf 

S2,135,750 S2.223,550 S2,783,825 S.l,099,381 so 

S2,ll5.750 S2.223.S50 52,783,825 S.1,099,381 so 

CONDOJA034N7 DONALl331RO MALCOD263BS BUDINAI0550M 
94-2248694 91-0826786 94-1671918 91-1684799 
601368804 278049134 6000535337 601638902 
746380008 307986000 439189009 842157006 
lndudtd Included Included lndudtd 

We recommend that this work be awarded to: Condon - Johnson 

Subcontract!Purchase Agreement Amount $2,135, 750 
We recommend that thi.< woit be bonded: Yes 

Estimated Bond Cost: Included in bid 1mount 

Hoffman Construction Company By: \...?-~ 
Date: 1/5/2016 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment C 

so 

so 

Approved: Va 

Date: 

Date Printed: 1/S/2016 

File: BC 01340 

so 

so 

I No -- --

so 

so 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment J 251



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133TM - 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor. Washington 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hoffman Construction Company of Washington 
600 Stewart Street Suite I 000 
Seattle, Washington 98101 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estelllish e GlillfflAh!etl Meiciffiliffi PFiee. authorize the 
Construction Manager to proceed with the Work of Deeo Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Deep Concrete Work 
@Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified 
General Conditions. The Owner and Construction Manager anticipate subsequent 
amendment(s) to the Agreement to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the 
remainder of the Work. This is the Seventh GMP Amendment for this Project. As agreed 
by the O\.Vller and Construction Manager, the Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount 
that the Contract Sum shall not eKeeee. exceed for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & 
Misc. Changes and related Negotiated Support Services and Specified General Conditions. 
The Contract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's Fee plus the Cost of the Work, 
as that term is defined in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed~ 
t,-:Nine Million Three Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty-Eight Dollars 
($9.355,968.00) for the Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes Work. which 
Contract Sum includes all related Negotiated Support Services, Soecified General 
Conditions, Contingency, and the Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
tax is not included in the above amount and will be added to the Cost of the Work. 

§ A.1 .1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximwn Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Provide below or reference an attachment.) 

This document has Important 

legal consequences. 

Consultation with an attorney 

Is encouraged with respect to 
its completion or modification. 

AIA Document A201 ™-2007, 

General Conditions of the 

Contract for Construction, Is 

adopted In this document by 

reference. Do not use wtth other 

general conditions unless this 

document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1J3"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright IC 1991, 2003 end 2009 by The Amelicen Institute of Architects. All rights niaarved. WARNING: This 
AJA• DOGument la protKted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnt.matlonal Trv•tl••· Un•uthorlzed reproducUon or dlatrlbuUon or thh• AJA• Document, or 
an rtlon of It, ma result In 1ev11re clvll and c:rlmlnaJ ~ltloa, and will be roaacutee to the maximum extent : aalble under the law. Thia 
oc:ument was y re at 09;08 30 on 0 Jl20;16 u er er No.1248342233_1 Wflx:ill expre5 on 04122/2016, and Is notfor resale 

U1erNotea: 
CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 252



lnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work@ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted a/le males. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner lo 
accept other alternates subsequent to the execution of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Performance Bond. included within the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and srate exclusions, if any, from the a/lawance price.) 

Item 
Structure Crack Injection 
Structure Water Testing 
Emergency Repair at Existing Surge Tank 
Early Mechanical BIM Detailing and Spool Sheets HCC 

Price ($0.00) 
$100,000.00 
$50.000.00 
$45.000.00 
$75.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffinan Construction Company GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation for Deep Concrete Work @ 
Area 30 & Misc. Changes. Within this GMP Amendment. the "Concrete Foundations and Walls - Area 30 HSI" 
Work is on a time and materials basis with a not exceed amount of Five Million Four Hundred Forty-Four Thousand 
Eight Hundred Thirtv Dollars ($5,444,830.00). 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

I. Hoffinan Cost Summary for Deep Concrete Work@ Area 30 & Misc. Changes. 

2. Hoffinan GMP No. 7 Project Schedule. 

OeGlllHAt 

§ A.1 .1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit altached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Secondary Building (Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package Technical 
Specifications dated January 2016. as updated through addenda. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Secondarv Building {Area 30) Foundation and Wall Package dated 
January 2016, as updated through addenda. 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(List any other documents or information here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

AJA Document A133"'- 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American tnstitute al Archi1ecls. All rights rvaerved. WARNING. Thia 
AJA• Document la protected by U.S. Copyright Law and 11\te!YMltlonal Tntatln. Unauthorized rvproductlon "distribution of th ta AJA• Docum•nr. or 
1"¥ poctlo0 of It, m•y cn11't In -.wera ch<f Inc! cdm•n•• penal!lq Md wu1 be paDNC11•11d ID thl mnlm&1111 ldaat po11lble undlf' th• I- TtA
docllment was produced by AIA software at 09:08:30 on 0312312016 under Order No 1248342233_ 1 which oxpires on IM/2212016, and is not for resale 

User Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 
(1094927688} 

2 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 253



Contractor shall employ performance and cost control in accordance with the letter !Tom KBA dated March 22. 
2016. 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Specifications Insert dated I 0130113. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance with the City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21, 2015. 

ARTICLE A.2 
§ AJ..1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by this Amendment: 

6. 

~--} ~ ~---------CON~~at11re) 

&'o Se~ > JL~'--
fPrinted name and title) r..::-::-o--"- ·~~/ Th,~. s -- R~~l-f!!Jr· 

(Printed name and title) 

AJA Document A133"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute af Architects. All rights rvserved. WARNING: Thl9 
AlA• Document le protected by U.S. Copyright Law •nd International Trvatln. Unauthorized rvproducllon or dl•trlbutlon ofthl8 N.A• Document, or 

----~•!Jr.......,Jl~!l-°!.. lt._~Lresult !.'!. a.tvm clvl!.Jif?!l_c!'.!rnl!'f !.M!lt~ ... •nd_~PJMJ>C01tcu~1.Jn••l0111.m..t"1tftt..00Ullllil 1u1dtc,1!LtJ1w...trJs __ 
document was produced by AJA sottware at 09:08 30 on 0312312016 under Older No 1248342233_ 1 which expires on 0412212016, and is not for resale. 
UaerNot111: 

lnlL 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A (1094927688) 

3 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 254



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, lo the best of my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 09:08:30 on 03123/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233_ 1 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AJA e Document A 133™ - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximwn Price Amendment. 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striking over deleted text 

(Signed) 

(Title) 

(Dated) 

AJA Document 0401 "' - 2003. Copyriglll C 1992 and 2003 by The American lnsblula of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AJA• Document Is 
procac:tad by U.S. Copyright Law and lntematlonal Tr&11tln. Unauthorlzod rvproductlon or dl•trlbutlon of this AJA• Document, or any portion of It, 1 JD1Y t1Slltt In ff'drl..CJyJl.lJl:ClcrllnlDillJ;leDAltlH and wm be pmHcuted 10 !ht •.uknum Ht111t poulhll un<fer "'* la• Ibis 4«wn1:~-
AIA !.OflWare at 09 08 30 on 0312312016 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which elq)ires on 0412212016. and is not for resale. 
UeerNotea: 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A ( 1094927688) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 255



L HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ri OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation 

Deep Concrete Work @Area 30 & Misc. Changes 

Direct Cost of Work 

Concrete Foundatio ns and Walls -- Area 30 HSI 

Deep Concrete Structural Excavation and Backfill Pellco 

Underslab Piping at Area 30 TBO 

Aluminum Embedded edge angle at trenches WIW 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GL9 CJA 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GLA at sump CJA S 
CE 0048 Additional MBR Cassette Suppor t Beams GE-Zenon S 

CE 0049 Remove 40hp VFD's from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0050 Remove Blower Starter from GE Scope GE-Zenon 

CE 0051 - Change MBR RIO Panels to Floor Mount GE-Zenon 

CE OOS8 -- Increased MBR Hanger Arm Lengths GE-Zenon 

CE 0043 - Sheet Piling Obstruction M itigation CJA, 

Pellco S 

Allowance - St ructure crack injection S 
Allowance - Structure water testing S 

Allowance - Emergency Repair at Exist . Surge Tank CE 0057 S 

Allowance -Early mechanical BIM detailing and Spool 

Sheets HCC 

15-Mar-16 

Rev 1 

5,444,830 

120,697 

120,320 

24,118 

90,000 

S0,000 

55,000 

(8,408) 

(25,988) 

11,467 

10,207 

76,942 

100,000 

50,000 

45,000 

75,000 

Total Direct Cost s ______ 6..,,2_3_9 ... ,1_8_5_ 

Negotiated Support Services 

Negotiated Support Services HCC s 1,307,264 

Builders Risk -- Premium for Projected Total GMP Woodr uff S 351,9S9 

Additional Dewatering Well for Deep Excavation Pellco S S,660 

Corrosion Resistant Dewatering Pumps (Purchase -3ea) Mitchell S 10,070 

Self Dumping Dirt Hoppers for Si r. Exe. (purchase) 2 ea HCC ....=.S ______ ..:2:.:2:<.:,1:..:1:.:6'-

Total NSS _..;..S _____ l..;.,6_9_7"-,0-6_9_ 

Total NSS and Direct Costs._! S;:;.._ ____ _c7..c,9:..:3:..:6:<.:,2:.:S-'4_.I 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

s 
s 

277,769 

158,725 

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies ~I .,;S _____ ..:8:.c,3:.:7-=2"-, 7'-4"8'-'I 

Specified General Conditions s S99,220 

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Condit ions Is 8,971,968 I 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% s 384,000 

Total GMP Cost._l ;,;.5 ____ ~9,c:.3::.;SS'-',9::.;6:..:8'--'I 

Washington Stat e Sales Tax @8.7% -'-5 ______ 8_1_3~,9_6_9_ 

Total Amendment No 7 (Incl. Sales Tax)._I .!;$ ____ .;;.10"''c:l-=6.;;.9,.;:,9c.;;3..;.7_1 
Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 

Total GC/ CM Contract with this Amendment w/ o WSST 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

790,050 

2,SS3,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

S,109,549 

2,028,222 

3,966,S03 

26, 630, 9ss I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 256



HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY r1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 

Clean Water Facil ity Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 7 - Area 30 Foundation and Walls 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 

40 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (10 mos) 
NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (10 mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce - SIM modeling (8 hours per week x 20 weeks) 

NSS 007012 Temp housing (40 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (10 mos) 
NSS 007026 Plans and Prints (lOmos) 
TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 00706S Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 01S200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower cr ane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (7 / 19/ 16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS 015750 Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (7/19/16 - 6/1/17) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 
NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Mlcropile Work (16 weeks) 
NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (10 mos) 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (10 months) 
NSS 015750 Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7/31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party {40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 
NSS 007060 Radio r ental extension - 4 units (40 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 40 weeks) 
NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 40 weeks rental 
NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) 

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (40 weeks) 

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service {130/month for lOmos) 

Ming Survey $95/hr st and $117 /hr ot 
NSS 010500 (1600hrs ST and 160hrs OT) 

Garner 

Garner 

Answering 
Innovations 

Ming 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Remaining Premium on 

s Summary 

$ 50,920.00 

$ 117,800.00 

s 16,000.00 

s 15,000.00 

s 5,000.00 

s 1,000.00 
Incl w -amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Ind w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

Incl w -amend 6 

$ 213,360.00 

$ 208,080.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 30,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

$ 8,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

s 20,000.00 

w-spec GC 

$ 3,040.00 
Add radios for operators 

s 3,040.00 and bellman 

s 1,500.00 

s 24,000.00 

s 35,188.00 

$ 17,701.00 

$ 4,000.00 

s 1,300.00 
Half time 2 man crew, 2 

hours OT I week 7S% of 

$ 127,200.00 period 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 257



Group 
NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

Code Description 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 
015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 10 months 

015300 Fence Rental Extension (10 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (10 months) 
NS5 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (10 months) 

NSS 

NSS 
NSS 

NSS 

015220 Temp Road Maint 
015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (10 months) 

015280 First Aid / Water Stations (2 each additional- Purchase) 

015280 First Ai d Station Maintenance & Supply ( 10 months) 

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (10 months) 

Temporary Electric 

NSS 015100 -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 10 months 
TC 015100 Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existi ng pole, 300' 

Sub 
Soundview 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 40 weeks) 
NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 40 weeks) 
NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter - field office 
NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side ofWIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (40wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 
NSS 015200 Extension of Second stair tower rental (40 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 
NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 40 weeks) 
NSS 015282 Drug Tests (180 ea) 

NSS 015800 Sign age (10 mos) 
NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (10 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 10 mos) 
NSS 017990 Job Services (40 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 5,610.00 

$ 5,750.00 

$ 1,600.00 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 28,000.00 

$ 1,500.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 10,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 
Incl w-amend 6 

3ea 4" conduitsx 200lf 

Incl w-amend 6 w/SO Cord 

$ 16,875.00 

$ 82,000.00 
By COH 

Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 12,000.00 
Incl w-amend 6 

Incl w-amend 6 

$ 20,000.00 

$ 15,300.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 9,500.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 136,000.00 

$ 1,307,264 .00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 258



S~ecified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 30 $ 3,270 $ 98,100 

Bryan Shirley 40 $ 3,818 $ 152,720 

Ben Larson 40 $ 2,745 $ 109,800 

Kevin Ryan 40 $ 2,840 $ 113,600 

$ 474,220 

Other LS GC $ 125,000 

Total Specified GC $ 599,220 

RFFP Total: $ 2,007,490 

Total Specified Ge's Included to Date by Amendment 

Amount % ofTota l 

Amendment 1 $ 0% 

Amendment 2 $ 108,034 5% 

Amendment 3 $ 0% 

Amendment 4 $ 162,180 8% 

Amendment 5 $ 0% 

Amendment 6 $ 147,112 7% 

Amendment 7 $ 599,220 30% 

Total To Date $ 1,016,546 51% 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 259



3/22/2016 

Brett Arvidson, PE 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 

Re: Oak Harbor - Clean Water Facility 

Dear Mr. Arvidson: 

This letter serves to confirm that the accuracy of the costs that Hoffman Construction (Hoffman) 
used to estimate the overall cost of proposed GMP Amendment No. 7, are reasonably acceptable. 

KBA performed an independent quantity estimate (i.e., takeoff) to check the volume of concrete, 
weight of reinforcing steel and surface contact area for formwork. KBA obtained two independent 
quotes for the cost of concrete. Three competitive bids for the furnishing and installation of 
reinforcing steel were also reviewed. Labor rates were checked against local area prevail ing 
wage rates. Hoffman's proposed construction schedule was evaluated and the proposed 
schedule duration of 45 weeks was found to be a reasonable amount of time to perform the Work. 

The total cost of the self-performed work does not exceed 50% of the current contract value, 
which is the maximum percentage of self-performed work allowed by RCW 39.10.370(7)(c). 

KBA's recommendation is to accept Hoffman's final cost estimate of $5,444,830 (excluding 
Washington State Sales Tax) for proposed GMP Amendment No. 7. 

It is also recommended that the Work and General Conditions should be tracked and paid on a 
time-and-material basis. 

Analysis of Hoffman's cost estimate was performed in a manner consistent with that degree of 
care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under 
similar circumstances, in the same geographical area and time period. 

Please contact K Adams or myself if you have any comments or questions. 

Chad Oxford, PE 

KBA, INC. (MAIN OFFICE) 11201 SE 8th Street~ Suite 160 Bellevue, Washington 98004 
CWF - GMP Amendment #1 - Attachment C 

T 425 455 9720 F 425 455 9732 KBACM.com 

CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment K 260



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 261



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 262



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 263



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 264



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 265



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 266



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 267



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 268



CWF - GMP Amendment #9 - Attachment L 269


	City Council Regular Meeting for October 4, 2016
	2. a. i.- Proclamation in Honor of Friends of the Oak Harbor Library - accepted by Susan Norman, President
	 Proclamation

	2. b. i. - Chief of Police Oath of Office
	 Chief of Police Oath of Office

	4. a. - Approval of Payroll and Accounts Payable Vouchers
	 10.04.16 Vouchers

	4. b. - Approve Minutes of the September 20, 2016 Regular Meeting, September 27 Special Meeting and September 28, 2016 Special Workshop Meeting
	 09/20/16 Regular Meeting Minutes
	 09/27/16 Special Meeting-CWF Minutes
	 09/28/16 Special Workshop Minutes

	4. c. - Request for Proposals Rejection-Comprehensive Classification and Compensation Study
	4. d. - Reappointment: Community Police Advisory Board, Positions 2 & 9 
	5. c. i. - Clean Water Facility Project Update 
	 Clean Water Facility Update

	8. a. - Clean Water Facility - GMP No. 9 with Hoffman Construction for Electrical and Mechanical Services
	 Attachment A - GMP #9
	 Attachment B - Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4a
	 Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendations of award for Package 4b
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - GMP #1
	 Attachment F - GMP #2
	 Attachment G - GMP #3
	 Attachment H - GMP #4
	 Attachment I - GMP #5
	 Attachment J - GMP #6
	 Attachment K - GMP #7
	 Attachment L - GMP #8




